
SOUTHERN
® 

UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
BATON ROUGE • NEW ORLEANS • SHREVEPORT 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

MEETING 

September 15, 2023 

Board of Supervisors' Meeting Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA. 

9:00 a.m. 



 

 

 

INDEX 

Academic Affairs Committee          

College of Humanities and Interdisciplinary Curriculum Change    6 

Endowed Professorship Recommendations       52-57 

SUBR 

SULC 

MOU between SUS and St. Kitts        58  

Academic Rank for Librarians         65 

Facilities and Property Committee 

Preliminary FY 2024-25 Capital Outlay                    70  

Facilities and Property Update                     72 

Finance Committee 

Interim Financial Report          77 
         

Governance Committee 

Americans with Disabilities Act Policy                   85 

Risk Management Policy                    97 

Personnel Affairs Committee           
 SUNO                      105 

 SUBR                      154 

 SUS                      176  

SUNO Salary Increase Requests                    219  

Southern University Full Board         

August 2023 BOS Meeting Minutes                  225 

CEA between SUS Campuses 

Contract between SULC and DCFS/LWS                   

  



Academic Affairs 



ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
September 15, 2023 

 9:00 am 
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA.  

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Recognition of Special Guest and Presentation 

A. Above and Beyond Award 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

4. Roll Call 

5. Adoption of the Agenda 

6. Public Comments 

7. Action Item(s) 

A. Request Approval of MOU between SUS and the Ministry of Education of the 
Federation of St. Kitts Nevis (SUS)  
Affiliation agreement between the Southern University System and the Ministry of 
Education of the Federation of St. Kitts and Nevis whereby qualified residents of St. 
Kitts and Nevis are afforded opportunities to further their education by attending an 
institution within the Southern University System. 
 

B. Request Approval for Curriculum Change in the College of Humanities and 
Interdisciplinary Studies and John B. Cade Library (SUBR) 
 

C. Request Approval of Endowed Professorship Recommendations of Faculty Members 
Who have been Nominated and Meet the Criteria for Eligibility. 

 
1. SUBR 

 
2. SULC 

 
D. Request Approval of Academic Rank for Librarians (SUBR) 

 
 
8. Informational Item(s) 

A.  CEO Roundtable on Cancer – Going 4 Gold Accreditation Announcement (SULC) 



9. Other Business  

10. Adjournment 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMBERS 
     Dr. Leon Tarver, II - Chairman, Mr. Sam Gilliam –Vice-Chair, 

Atty Jody Amedee, Mrs. Maple Gaines, Mrs. Ann Smith, and Dr. Arlanda Williams 
Mr. Myron K. Lawson – Ex Officio 

 



  
  Page 1 of 7  

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

between  
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 
AND AGRICULTURAL & MECHANICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 

 
and 

 
 MINISTRY OF EDUCATION  

OF THE FEDERATION OF ST. KITTS AND NEVIS  
  

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is made and entered into to be effective as of the 1st day of 
August, 2023 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Southern University and Agricultural & Mechanical College 
System (“SUS”), a System of institutions of higher learning established under the laws of the State of Louisiana 
as independent public universities with its locations in Baton Rouge, New Orleans, and Shreveport, Louisiana, 
United States, and the Ministry of Education of the Federation of St. Kitts and Nevis (“SKMoE”), located in 
Basseterre, St. Kitts, to affirm their collaborative effort and commitment to providing quality education for 
Kittitians and Nevisians at a reasonable cost.  Both SUS and SKMoE may be referred to individually as a “Party” 
or collectively as the “Parties.”   
 
The Parties hereto hereby agree that the following understandings will guide this effort, until amended or 
supplemented. 
 
1. Purpose and Goals  

(a) SUS has a significant interest in expanding global awareness of SUS and SUS’s program offerings. 
(b) SUS has a significant interest in enrolling high quality students to various degree programs. 
(c) SUS has a particular interest in expanding the number of students from St. Kitts and Nevis who wish 

to pursue degrees at the undergraduate and graduate levels.  
(d) SKMoE has a particular interest in providing high quality, baccalaureate and graduate degree 

preparation and other educational programs for its citizens and residents at a reasonable cost.  
   

2. Terms and Conditions  
To allow the above referenced goals to be achieved, SUS and SKMoE will honor the following general 
guidelines:  
 
(a) Students who are residents of St. Kitts and Nevis, recommended to SUS by SKMoE, apply and are 

admitted in SUS will receive Louisiana resident (also known as in-state) tuition while in good academic 
standing . This is SUS’s absolute lowest tuition category, and is the same rate paid by Louisiana 
residents.  For continued eligibility for in-state tuition, undergraduate students must maintain a 
minimum of 2.75 institutional GPA at the end of each academic year (fall -spring semester). Graduate 
students must maintain a minimum of 3.0 institutional GPA at the end of each academic year.  Said 
resident tuition will apply for students pursuing baccalaureate studies and graduate degree studies 
that SUS offers.  If a student enrolls at SUS for a baccalaureate degree program, and maintains the 
aforementioned minimum institutional GPA, then said resident tuition will continue for as long as 
such student is enrolled at SUS in any degree program.   



  
  Page 2 of 7  

 
(b) Students who are residents of St. Kitts and Nevis, apply and are admitted to SUS and fall within any 

of the following categories will be eligible for resident tuition at SUS: 
 

 
a. (i) Students who are in their final year of high school studies and are expected to complete 

high school in St. Kitts and Nevis and are recommended to SUS by SKMoE, and (ii) students 
who have graduated from a high school in St. Kitts and Nevis and are recommended to SUS by 
SKMoE.  Such students may complete their entire baccalaureate degree studies at SUS, plus 
any other degree programs of their choice if they maintain the minimum GPA stated above 
and if they transition directly to a SUS graduate degree program (or another SUS educational 
program) within three (3) semesters after completion of their baccalaureate studies. 
 

b. (i) Students who are enrolled at CFBC and are recommended to SUS by SKMoE, or (ii) students 
who have graduated from CFBC and are recommended to SUS by SKMoE.  In such case, on one 
hand, if a student has completed an associate degree from CFBC, subject to accreditation 
standards and best practices, SUS agrees to provide every effort to give said student full credit 
for the associate degree such that said student would only need to complete two (2) additional 
years at SUS in order to complete their baccalaureate studies for a traditional four (4) year 
degree program. On the other hand, if a student has completed some classes at CFBC but has 
not completed the entire associate degree program or if a student is switching focus from one 
area of concentration to another, SUS will, in good faith, evaluate the student’s completed 
coursework and will determine how many transfer credits the student will receive at SUS.  In 
either case, such students may complete their baccalaureate degree studies at SUS, plus any 
other degree programs of their choice if they maintain the minimum GPA stated above and if 
they transition directly to a SUS graduate degree program (or another SUS educational 
program) after completion of their baccalaureate studies.  The Parties agree that students 
who have completed an associate degree program at CFBC will not be required to take the 
SAT, the ACT, or any other standardized test, for admission to SUS, if students can evidence 
completion of common core or its equivalent. 
 

c. Employees of the Government of St. Kitts and Nevis, including employees of CFBC, who are 
residents of St. Kitts and Nevis and who are recommended to SUS by SKMoE for the 
completion of degree programs or other educational programs or certificates of study 
(including, but not limited to, a leadership program offered by SUS). 

  
(c) Students for whom this agreement applies and who enroll in baccalaureate degree programs at SUS 

and are considered full-time, can be given priority consideration to live on campus in SUS housing 
during the student’s first year (fall-spring) at SUS, and must pay the appropriate room and board fees.  
 

a. SUS agrees to use best effort to accommodate Students whom request to room with a fellow 
countryman.  

b. As of their second year, students can choose on or off-campus housing, however, no priority 
will be given. 

c. SUS will endeavor to provide said students with the most cost effective option for on campus 
housing. 

 



  
  Page 3 of 7  

 
Students for whom this agreement applies and who enroll in graduate degree programs or any other 
programs of study other than baccalaureate programs will not be given guaranteed housing.  SUS can 
recommend apartment options.  

  
(d) All students will be given opportunities to earn scholarships that are awarded in accordance with 

published SUS scholarship guidelines. These include but are not limited to departmental scholarships 
and community scholarships.  
  

(e) In accordance with US law, all students will be required to have proper health insurance. Students 
will be automatically enrolled in the SUS contracted health insurance program unless they are 
approved for a waiver by documenting similar health insurance.   

 
(f) Notwithstanding the provisions of this MOU, SUS reserves the right to hold Students accountable for 

actions in accordance with its policies and procedures.  Violations of the Student Code of Conduct, 
academic policies, or unethical and illegal actions can result in the dismissal of the Student from SUS.  
For the avoidance of doubt, Students under this agreement will be held to the same standard as all 
other SUS Students.  

 
(g) For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties understand and agree that any individual who is 

recommended to SUS by SKMoE or by CFBC in accordance with the terms of this MOU shall apply to 
SU through its application process and may be denied admission to SUS if said individual does not 
meet SUS’s standards for admission, except as otherwise expressly stated in this MOU. 

 
(h) Further, for the avoidance of doubt, the Parties understand and agree that this MOU will apply to all 

students who are residents of St. Kitts and Nevis, regardless of their citizenship.  For example, 
residents of St. Kitts and Nevis who are citizens of other countries will also be eligible for the programs 
offered by SUS in this MOU; except that any students who may be residents or citizens of St. Kitts and 
Nevis but who are citizens of any country that is subject to an embargo or comprehensive sanction 
by the United States of America will not be eligible for the programs offered by SUS or contemplated 
in this MOU. 

  
(i) Even further, for the avoidance of doubt, any individuals who are listed on the US Department of the 

Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control’s Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List 
are not and will not be eligible for any programs offered by SUS or contemplated in this MOU. 

 
(j) SUS agrees to continue its partnership with SKMoE in an effort to shorten time to graduation for 

students who take advantage of the programs offered in this MOU; SUS will initiate a course mapping 
exercise with SKMoE and, if applicable, with CFBC, to clearly articulate potential course transfer 
credits.   

  
(k) SUS requests in return that SKMoE includes SUS as a school of choice by:   

  
a. Distributing promotional materials to St. Kitts and Nevis residents on behalf of SUS.  
b. Collaborating with SUS to host information sessions via zoom and in-person on the island of 

St. Kitts.  
c. Share information with SUS on students who express interest in SUS, for follow up.  



Page 4 of 7 

3. General Provisions
(a) SKMoE and SUS agree to work together to ensure the students participating in the program will be

given opportunities and treated like all other students.

(b) SKMoE and SUS agree to regular and consistent conversations to discuss the program and its success.
Further, SKMoE and SUS shall work together, in good faith, to continue to evaluate their relationship
and to continue to partner with each other on other opportunities as mutually agreed by the Parties.

(c) Should either Party want to make revisions or include an addendum, the amendments made shall be
in writing and signed by both Parties.

4. Amendments
This MOU may be amended only by a separate agreement in writing signed by the Parties.  The Parties
may supplement this agreement with a separate written agreement governing specific area(s) of co-
operation and collaboration between them.  Such supplemental agreement, once executed by the
relevant Parties, will form part of this MOU.

5. Points of Contact and Notices

Points of Contact for executing the obligations of the MOU are:

For SUS:
Undergraduate for Southern University – Baton Rouge:
Dr. Anthony Jackson
Interim Vice Chancellor for Admissions and Enrollment Management
anthony_jackson@subr.edu
225-771-5781

Undergraduate for Southern University – New Orleans  
Dr. Zackeus Johnson 
Vice Chancellor for Enrollment Management and Student Success 
Zackeus.johnson@sus.edu 
504-286-5040

Graduate for Southern University – Baton Rouge: 
Dr. Albertha Lawson  
Interim Dean Graduate School 
Albertha_Lawson@subr.edu 
225-771-5453

Graduate for Southern University – New Orleans:  
Dr. Willie Jones, III 
Associate Vice Chancellor for Graduate Studies and Research 
wijones@suno.edu 
504-284-5520

mailto:anthony_jackson@subr.edu
mailto:Zackeus.johnson@sus.edu
mailto:Albertha_Lawson@subr.edu
mailto:wijones@suno.edu


  
  Page 5 of 7  

504-284-5520 
 
For SKMoE: 
 
Primary Contact: 
 
Mrs. Lisa-Romayne Pistana 
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education 
lisa.r.pistana@moe.edu.kn 
+1 869-467-1105 
 
Secondary Contact: 
 
Dr. Tricia Esdaille 
Senior Assistant Secretary, Ministry of Education 
tricia.esdaille@moe.edu.kn 
+1 869-467-1402 
 
Any notices regarding amendments or revisions of this MOU shall be given in writing and delivered via 
email or via a recognized overnight courier service as follows:  
 
If to SKMoE: 
 
Mrs. Lisa-Romayne Pistana 
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education 
The Cable Building 
Cayon Street 
Basseterre, St. Kitts 
lisa.r.pistana@moe.edu.kn 
+1 869-467-1105 
 
With a Copy to: 
 
Dr. Tricia Esdaille 
Senior Assistant Secretary, Ministry of Education 
The Cable Building 
Cayon Street 
Basseterre, St. Kitts 
tricia.esdaille@moe.edu.kn 
+1 869-467-1402 
 
If to SUS:  
 
Dennis J. Shields, President-Chancellor  
Southern University and A&M College 
J.S. Clark Administration Building, Fourth Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 700813 



  
  Page 6 of 7  

dennis.shields@sus.edu 
225-771-4680 
 
With Copy to:  
 
General Counsel 
J.S. Clark Administration 
Office of the President 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
corinne blache@sus.edu 
225-771-4680 
 

6. Agreement Effective Date and Termination  
This MOU shall become effective as of the Effective Date stated above and, subject to any subsequently 
executed written agreement(s), shall be in force for a period of five (5) years, terminating on July 31, 
2028 (the “Expiration Date”), unless this MOU is extended in writing.  The Parties agree that this MOU 
will be reviewed annually, in good faith.  This MOU may be terminated by either Party giving written 
notice to the other Party no later than one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the Expiration Date.  If 
this MOU is not so terminated, it shall automatically renew for successive one (1) year periods (each 
one-year period shall be referred to as a “Renewal Period”) and may then only be terminated by either 
Party giving written notice to the other Party no later than one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the 
end of the then current Renewal Period.  However, any such termination of this MOU shall not affect 
the completion of any program underway by any student enrolled with SU at the time that the notice of 
termination is given or is effective.  

  

 
 
 

[Signatures begin on following page.] 
  





TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SC>LJ-1 ·1-1 r:RN 
l J N I V 1 · I� S I 1 · Y

AND ACUUCUlll.JkAI. & MliCt-lANICAt CC>UliOl! 

CURRICULUM COMMITTERE REPORT 

MEMORANDUM 

Bijoy K. Sahoo, Ph.D. 
Executive Vice Chancellor and Provost 

Ashagre "Ashe" Yigletu, Ph.D. fa 
Chair, SUBR Cmriculum Com13/ff 

August 8, 2023 

SUBJECT: Curriculum Committee Report 

A. Introduction

I. The Southern University and A&M College-Baton Rouge Curriculum Committee
(SUBRCC) met on July 14, 2023, to review curriculum change requests submitted from 
the College of Humanities and Interdisciplinary Studies and John B. Cade Library.
Detailed documents of the requested curriculum changes are attached to this report.

Curriculum Committee Members present at the Meeting: 

Name Col/ege/Deparh11e11t Atte11d1111ce 

l .  Anthony Igiede Nelson Mandela College of Gov. & Social Science Present 

2. Staci Taylor College of Nursing & Allied Health Absent 
3. Rachele Vincent-Finley College of Sciences Engineering Absent 

4. Ghinnay S. Ghebreyesus College of Business Absent 

5. Crystal Vance College of Agricultural, Family and Consumer Present 
Sciences 

6. Yolanda Campbell College of Humanities and Interdisciplinary Studies Present 
7. Shawn Comminey College of Humanities and Interdisciplinary Studies Present 

8. Steohone Addison Nelson Mandela College of Gov. & Social Science Present 

9. Ashagre "Ashe" Yigletu, Chair Graduate School Present 

1 



The following non-committee members were present at the meeting to provide additional 
infonnation on the agenda items submitted by the Music Department. 

1. Dr. Dawn Kight, Dean, John B. Cade Library
2. Dr. Doris Hall, Dr. Doris Spooner-Hall, E.D.IDMA, Full-Time Adjunct Professor of

Music,
3. Dr. Judy James, Associate Professor, [nter Chair of Department of Fine & Perfonning

Arts
4. Dr. J. Corey Knoll, [nstructor of Composition, Music Theory, and Technology

B. Summarized Curriculum Change Requests Submitted for Review & Approval

Recommending Academic Department Requested Curriculum Change 
Unil/SchooVOff,ce 

College of Humanities & Department of Fine and • Concentration in Music
Interdisciplinary Studies Perfonning Arts Technology/Entrepreneurship

• 8 new music technology courses
• New course prefix "MUTE" for music

technology courses
• Increase the 120 er. hrs. required SCH to 124 er .

hrs. based on the learner's music backlll'ound.
College of Humanities & Department of Fine and Add four new courses for the·existing Minor in 
Interdisciplinary Studies Perfomiing Arts Theatre 

College of Humanities & Department of Fine and Minor in Dance 
Interdiscipllnary Studies Perfonning Arts 

John B. Cade Library John B. Cade Library • New Library Science General Education Course
• New Course Title: Library Research Methods
• New Course Prefix: LBSC
• New Course#: 101

2 











































































































Attachment C -Library Titles at Area Universities 

Southeastern University Grambling State SUNO SUSLA 

Associate Professor/Head of Cata login Assistant University Assistant Professor Associate 

Librarian for Access and Professor/Head 

Academic Innovation 

Assistant Professor/Head of Serials Head of Acquisitions/Seria Cataloger/Assistant Instructor/Cataloger 

Instructor/Reference/Instruction Libra Associate Professor Professor 

Assistant Professor 

Professor/Head of Acquisitions 

Source: 

https :/ /I ib ra ry. Io u is ia na. ed u/ a bout-us/faculty-staff directory 

https://www.southeastern.edu/library/about/peopleatoz/index.html 

ULL 

Assistant Professor and 

Head of Instructional 

Services 

Associate Professor, 

Head of Government 

Information 

Instructor, Interim 

Head of Reference & 

Research Services, and 

Research Librarian 

Professor and Associate 

Dean of University 

Libraries 

Assistant Professor, 

and Interim Assistant 

Dean of Technical 

Services 

Associate Professor, 

Archivist 

Assistant Professor and 

Head of Cataloging 

Instructor and 

Instruction Librarian 



 
 

Facilities and Property 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
(Following Academic Affairs Committee) 

September 15, 2023 
 9:00 am 

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA.  
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1.  Call to Order 
 
2.  Roll Call 
 
3.  Adoption of the Agenda 
 
4.  Public Comments 
 
5. Action Item(s) 
 

A. Request Approval of Preliminary FY 2024-25 Capital Outlay (eCORTS) Submission    
     Recommendation (SUS) 

 
6. Informational Item(s) 
 

A. Facilities Update (SUS) 
    
7.  Other Business 
 
8.  Adjournment 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMBERS 
     Atty Edwin Shorty - Chairman, Atty Domoine Rutledge – Vice-Chair, 

Mr. Paul Matthews, Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr. Leon Tarver, II and Dr. Rani Whitfield 
Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio 













 
 

Finance 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FINANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following Facilities and Property Committee) 

September 15, 2023 
 9:00 am 

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA.  
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Adoption of the Agenda 
 

4. Public Comments 
 

5. Informational Item(s) 
 

A. Financial Report 

6. Other Business 
 

7. Adjournment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMBERS 
Dr. Arlanda Williams- Chairman, Ms. Ann Smith – Vice-Chair, 

Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mrs. Christy Reeves, Atty. Domoine Rutledge, and Dr. Leon Tarver, II 
Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio         



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 66,400,531$        3,476,068$           62,924,463$        66,400,531$        -$                              5.2%

Statutory Dedicated 5,051,115             -                               5,051,115             5,051,115             -                                0.0%

Federal 3,654,209             -                               3,654,209             3,654,209             -                                0.0%

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 35,457,617           32,548,948           2,042,615             34,591,563           (866,054)                91.8%

    Tuition - Spring 2024 33,473,960           -                               33,473,960           33,473,960           -                                0.0%

    Tuition - Summer 4,321,912             326,073                 3,995,839             4,321,912             -                                7.5%

    Out-of-State Fees 16,682,867           9,487,742             7,523,730             17,011,472           328,605                  56.9%

    Other 21,332,244           5,289,164             16,043,080           21,332,244           -                                24.8%

Interagency Transfer 4,476,791             821                         4,475,970             4,476,791             -                                0.0%

Total Revenues 190,851,246$   51,128,815$      139,184,982$   190,313,797$   (537,449)$            26.8%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 90,739,457$        13,025,472$        77,713,985$        90,739,457$        -$                              14.4%

  Other Compensation 394,759                 17,599                   377,160                 394,759                 -                                4.5%

  Related Benefits 38,496,101           4,519,340             33,976,761           38,496,101           -                                11.7%

Total Personal Services 129,630,317$   17,562,411$      112,067,906$   129,630,317$   -$                             13.5%

  Travel 1,490,311             89,759                   1,400,552             1,490,311             -                                6.0%

  Operating Services 17,932,095           7,845,453             10,086,642           17,932,095           -                                43.8%

  Supplies 2,136,272             264,226                 1,872,046             2,136,272             -                                12.4%

Total Operating Expenses 21,558,678$      8,199,438$         13,359,240$      21,558,678$      -$                             38.0%

  Professional Services 2,727,372             294,112                 1,895,811             2,189,923             (537,449)                10.8%

  Other Charges 12,367,665           11,190                   12,356,475           12,367,665           -                                0.1%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 7,865,134             -                               7,865,134             7,865,134             -                                0.0%

Total Other Charges 22,960,171$      305,302$             22,117,420$      22,422,722$      (537,449)$            1.3%

  General Acquisitions 725,342                 6,725                      718,617                 725,342                 -                                0.9%

  Library Acquisitions 262,649                 19,167                   243,482                 262,649                 -                                7.3%

  Major Repairs 2,495,314             97,625                   2,397,689             2,495,314             -                                3.9%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 3,483,305$         123,517$             3,359,788$         3,483,305$         -$                             3.5%

  Scholarships 13,218,775           7,489,020             5,729,755             13,218,775           -                                56.7%

Total Expenditures 190,851,246$   33,679,689$      156,634,108$   190,313,797$   (537,449)$            17.6%

Southern University System

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of August 31, 2023 

Page 1



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 5,265,886$           -$                             5,265,886$           5,265,886$           -$                             0.0%

Statutory Dedicated 200,000                 -                               200,000                 200,000                 -                               0.0%

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023

    Tuition - Spring 2024

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 5,465,886$         -$                            5,465,886$         5,465,886$         -$                            0.0%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 1,930,302$           298,384$              1,631,918$           1,930,302$           -$                             15.5%

  Other Compensation 64,500                   8,666                      55,834                   64,500                   -                               13.4%

  Related Benefits 825,606                 96,928                   728,678                 825,606                 -                               11.7%

Total Personal Services 2,820,408$         403,978$             2,416,430$         2,820,408$         -$                            14.3%

  Travel 365,000                 2,217                      362,783                 365,000                 -                               0.6%

  Operating Services 244,000                 15,122                   228,878                 244,000                 -                               6.2%

  Supplies 131,000                 1,412                      129,588                 131,000                 -                               1.1%

Total Operating Expenses 740,000$             18,751$               721,249$             740,000$             -$                            2.5%

  Professional Services 151,000                 18,750                   132,250                 151,000                 -                               12.4%

  Other Charges 1,587,077             -                               1,587,077             1,587,077             -                               0.0%

  Debt Services -                               

  Interagency Transfers 97,401                   -                               97,401                   97,401                   

Total Other Charges 1,835,478$         18,750$               1,816,728$         1,835,478$         -$                            1.0%

  General Acquisitions 70,000                   70,000                   70,000                   -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions

  Major Repairs

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 70,000$               -$                            70,000$               70,000$               -$                            0.0%

  Scholarships

Total Expenditures 5,465,886$         441,479$             5,024,407$         5,465,886$         -$                            8.1%

Southern University Board and System Administration

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of August 31, 2023 

Page 2



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 26,039,530$        -$                             26,039,530$        26,039,530$        -$                             0.0%

Statutory Dedicated 1,773,886             -                               1,773,886             1,773,886             -                               0.0%

Federal -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 21,974,488           21,914,834           59,654                   21,974,488           -                               99.7%

    Tuition - Spring 2024 21,244,676           -                               21,244,676           21,244,676           -                               0.0%

    Tuition - Summer 2,201,756             -                               2,201,756             2,201,756             -                               0.0%

    Out-of-State Fees 11,222,140           6,824,147             4,397,993             11,222,140           -                               60.8%

    Other 11,338,306           2,391,418             8,946,888             11,338,306           -                               21.1%

Interagency Transfer 4,476,791             821                         4,475,970             4,476,791             -                               0.0%

Total Revenues 100,271,573$   31,131,221$      69,140,352$      100,271,573$   -$                            31.0%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 45,802,691$        6,112,067$           39,690,624$        45,802,691$        -$                             13.3%

  Other Compensation 201,377                 -                               201,377                 201,377                 -                               0.0%

  Related Benefits 19,883,952           2,488,862             17,395,090           19,883,952           -                               12.5%

Total Personal Services 65,888,020$      8,600,929$         57,287,091$      65,888,020$      -$                            13.1%

  Travel 325,870                 58,373                   267,497                 325,870                 -                               17.9%

  Operating Services 10,688,986           7,107,161             3,581,825             10,688,986           -                               66.5%

  Supplies 937,411                 170,791                 766,620                 937,411                 -                               18.2%

Total Operating Expenses 11,952,267$      7,336,325$         4,615,942$         11,952,267$      -$                            61.4%

  Professional Services 1,101,480             170,000                 931,480                 1,101,480             -                               15.4%

  Other Charges 3,935,631             10,908                   3,924,723             3,935,631             -                               0.3%

  Debt Services -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 4,913,719             -                               4,913,719             4,913,719             -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 9,950,830$         180,908$             9,769,922$         9,950,830$         -$                            1.8%

  General Acquisitions 62,032                   -                               62,032                   62,032                   -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions 137,649                 19,167                   118,482                 137,649                 -                               

  Major Repairs 62,000                   -                               62,000                   62,000                   -                               0.0%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 261,681$             19,167$               242,514$             261,681$             -$                            7.3%

  Scholarships 12,218,775           6,733,820             5,484,955             12,218,775           -$                             55.1%

Total Expenditures 100,271,573$   22,871,149$      77,400,424$      100,271,573$   -$                            22.8%
   

Southern University Baton Rouge Campus

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of August 31, 2023 

Page 3



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 6,705,340$           6,705,340$           6,705,340$           -$                             0.0%

Statutory Dedicated 191,980                 191,980                 191,980                 -                               0.0%

Federal -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 5,376,929             4,839,480             -                               4,839,480             (537,449)               90.0%

    Tuition - Spring 2024 5,035,879             5,035,879             5,035,879             -                               0.0%

    Tuition - Summer 767,123                 767,123                 767,123                 -                               0.0%

    Out-of-State Fees 4,913,227             2,191,925             2,721,302             4,913,227             -                               44.6%

    Other 4,324,709             1,823,178             2,501,531             4,324,709             -                               42.2%

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               

Total Revenues 27,315,187$      8,854,583$         17,923,155$      26,777,738$      (537,449)$           32.4%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 15,343,775$        2,693,592$           12,650,183$        15,343,775$        -$                             17.6%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               

  Related Benefits 5,925,444             846,828                 5,078,616             5,925,444             -                               14.3%

Total Personal Services 21,269,219$      3,540,420$         17,728,799$      21,269,219$      -$                            16.6%

  Travel 505,000                 15,668                   489,332                 505,000                 -                               3.1%

  Operating Services 1,815,326             234,410                 1,580,916             1,815,326             -                               12.9%

  Supplies 280,000                 26,514                   253,487                 280,000                 -                               9.5%

Total Operating Expenses 2,600,326$         276,591$             2,323,735$         2,600,326$         -$                            10.6%

  Professional Services 1,250,000             93,614                   618,937                 712,551                 (537,449)               7.5%

  Other Charges 981,125                 981,125                 981,125                 -                               0.0%

  Debt Services -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 264,517                 264,517                 264,517                 -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 2,495,642$         93,614$               1,864,579$         1,958,193$         (537,449)$           3.8%

  General Acquisitions 300,000                 5,803                      294,197                 300,000                 -                               

  Library Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 300,000$             5,803$                  294,197$             300,000$             -$                            1.9%

  Scholarships 650,000                 650,000                 650,000                 -                               100.0%

Total Expenditures 27,315,187$      4,566,427$         22,211,311$      26,777,738$      (537,449)$           16.7%

Southern University Law Center

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of August 31, 2023 

Page 4



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 9,734,448$           -$                             9,734,448$           9,734,448$           -$                             0.0%

Statutory Dedicated 552,652                 -                               552,652                 552,652                 -                               0.0%

Federal -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 4,144,256             3,815,651             -                               3,815,651             (328,605)               92.1%

    Tuition - Spring 2024 3,760,661             -                               3,760,661             3,760,661             -                               0.0%

    Tuition - Summer 815,662                 -                               815,662                 815,662                 -                               0.0%

    Out-of-State Fees 366,000                 434,620                 259,985                 694,605                 328,605                 118.7%

    Other 4,498,838             1,052,966             3,445,872             4,498,838             -                               23.4%

Interagency Transfer -                               

Total Revenues 23,872,517$      5,303,236$         18,569,281$      23,872,517$      0$                           22.2%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 12,602,295$        1,631,387$           10,970,908$        12,602,295$        -$                             12.9%

  Other Compensation -                               600                         (600)                       -                               -                               

  Related Benefits 5,040,918             258,466                 4,782,452             5,040,918             -                               5.1%

Total Personal Services 17,643,213$      1,890,453$         15,752,760$      17,643,213$      -$                            10.7%

  Travel 20,000                   -                               20,000                   20,000                   -                               0.0%

  Operating Services 2,069,190             303,502                 1,765,688             2,069,190             -                               14.7%

  Supplies 214,000                 15,470                   198,530                 214,000                 -                               7.2%

Total Operating Expenses 2,303,190$         318,972$             1,984,218$         2,303,190$         -$                            13.8%

  Professional Services 99,892                   2,500                      97,392                   99,892                   -                               

  Other Charges 3,152,024             -                               3,152,024             3,152,024             -                               0.0%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 299,198                 -                               299,198                 299,198                 -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 3,551,114$         2,500$                  3,548,614$         3,551,114$         -$                            0.1%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions 125,000                 125,000                 125,000                 -                               0.0%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 125,000$             -$                            125,000$             125,000$             -$                            0.0%

  Scholarships 250,000                 85,773                   164,227                 250,000                 -                               34.3%

Total Expenditures 23,872,517$      2,297,697$         21,574,820$      23,872,517$      -$                            9.6%
   

Southern University New Orleans Campus

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of August 31, 2023 

Page 5



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 7,531,907$           -$                             7,531,907$           7,531,907$           -$                             0.0%

Statutory Dedicated 529,902                 -                               529,902                 529,902                 -                               0.0%

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 3,961,944             1,978,983             1,982,961             3,961,944             -                               49.9%

    Tuition - Spring 2024 3,432,744             -                               3,432,744             3,432,744             -                               0.0%

    Tuition - Summer 537,371                 326,073                 211,298                 537,371                 -                               60.7%

    Out-of-State Fees 181,500                 37,050                   144,450                 181,500                 -                               20.4%

    Other 1,170,391             21,602                   1,148,789             1,170,391             -                               1.8%

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 17,345,759$      2,363,708$         14,982,051$      17,345,759$      -$                            13.6%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 8,728,932$           1,123,900$           7,605,032$           8,728,932$           -$                             12.9%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Related Benefits 3,868,603             422,196                 3,446,407             3,868,603             -                               10.9%

Total Personal Services 12,597,535$      1,546,096$         11,051,439$      12,597,535$      -$                            12.3%

  Travel 43,000                   5,345                      37,655                   43,000                   -                               12.4%

  Operating Services 2,592,161             171,885                 2,420,276             2,592,161             -                               6.6%

  Supplies 102,500                 38,007                   64,493                   102,500                 -                               37.1%

Total Operating Expenses 2,737,661$         215,237$             2,522,424$         2,737,661$         -$                            7.9%

  Professional Services 20,000                   160                         19,840                   20,000                   -                               0.8%

  Other Charges 426,000                 282                         425,718                 426,000                 -                               0.1%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 1,464,563             -                               1,464,563             1,464,563             -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 1,910,563$         442$                      1,910,121$         1,910,563$         -$                            0.0%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               0.0%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            0.0%

  Scholarships 100,000                 19,427                   80,573                   100,000                 -                               19.4%

Total Expenditures 17,345,759$      1,781,202$         15,564,557$      17,345,759$      -$                            10.3%
   

Southern University Shreveport Campus

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of August 31, 2023 

Page 6



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 11,123,420$        3,476,068$           7,647,352$           11,123,420$        -$                             31.2%

Statutory Dedicated 1,802,695             1,802,695             1,802,695             -                               0.0%

Federal 3,654,209             3,654,209             3,654,209             -                               0.0%

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 -                               -                               -                               

    Tuition - Spring 2024 -                               -                               -                               

    Tuition - Summer -                               -                               -                               

    Out-of-State Fees -                               -                               -                               

    Other -                               -                               -                               

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               -                               

Total Revenues 16,580,324$      3,476,068$         13,104,256$      16,580,324$      -$                            21.0%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 6,331,462$           1,166,142$           5,165,320$           6,331,462$           -$                             18.4%

  Other Compensation 128,882                 8,333                      120,549                 128,882                 -                               6.5%

  Related Benefits 2,951,578             406,060                 2,545,518             2,951,578             -                               13.8%

Total Personal Services 9,411,922$         1,580,536$         7,831,386$         9,411,922$         -$                            16.8%

  Travel 231,441                 8,157                      223,284                 231,441                 -                               3.5%

  Operating Services 522,432                 13,373                   509,059                 522,432                 -                               2.6%

  Supplies 471,361                 12,033                   459,328                 471,361                 -                               2.6%

Total Operating Expenses 1,225,234$         33,563$               1,191,671$         1,225,234$         -$                            2.7%

  Professional Services 105,000                 9,088                      95,912                   105,000                 -                               8.7%

  Other Charges 2,285,808             2,285,808             2,285,808             -                               0.0%

  Debt Services -                               

  Interagency Transfers 825,736                 825,736                 825,736                 -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 3,216,544$         9,088$                  3,207,456$         3,216,544$         -$                            0.3%

  General Acquisitions 293,310                 922                         292,388                 293,310                 -                               0.3%

  Library Acquisitions -                               -                               

  Major Repairs 2,433,314             97,625                   2,335,689             2,433,314             -                               4.0%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 2,726,624$         98,547$               2,628,077$         2,726,624$         -$                            3.6%

  Scholarships -                               -                               -                               

Total Expenditures 16,580,324$      1,721,734$         14,858,590$      16,580,324$      -$                            10.4%

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of August 31, 2023 

Page 7



 
 

Governance 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following Finance Committee) 

September 15, 2023 
 9:00 am 

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA.  
 

AGENDA 
 

1.  Call to Order 
 
2.  Roll Call 
 
3.  Adoption of the Agenda 
 
4.  Public Comments 
 
5. Action Item(s) 

A. Americans with Disabilities Act Policy (Policy Number 6-011)  
This policy is to outline and unify the System's standards and procedures for ADA 
compliance in regard to the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, its Amending 
Act of 2008, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Louisiana 
Employment Discrimination Law, Act 103 of the 2022 Regular Legislative Session, 
and Act 393 of the 2023 Regular Legislative Session. 
 

B. Risk Management Policy (Policy Number 12-003)  
This policy is to uniform risk management policies and procedures throughout the 
System in order to achieve better compliance in an effort to protect System employees 
from accidents and to reduce the System's insurance costs. 
 

C. Request Approval of 2022 – 2023 Board Self Evaluation. 
 
6. Other Business 
 
7. Adjournment 

 
 

    
 

 
         MEMBERS 

Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert - Chairman, Dr. Rani Whitfield – Vice-Chair, 
Dr. Leon Tarver, Ms. Christy Reeves, Mr. Jyron Young, Atty. Edwin Shorty 

Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio 





2 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 

The System Office for Compliance may develop supplementary procedures and forms to 
further support the implementation of this Policy among the institutions of the System. 
However, this Policy establishes various mandatory obligations with which all 
supplementary procedures and forms must comply. 

II. NOTICE OF NON-DISCRIMINATION 

The following Notice of Non-Discrimination must be distributed to all students, employees, 
applicants for admission and employment, and other relevant individuals. The notice must be 
posted, prominently displayed on the website of each institution of the System, and included in 
publications of general distribution that provide information to students and employees. 

In accordance with the requirement of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and 
its Amending Act of 2008 (collectively “ADA”), the Southern University System (System) will not 
discriminate against qualified individuals with disabilities on the basis of disability in its 
services, programs, or activities. The System does not discriminate on the basis of disability in its 
hiring or employment practices and complies with all regulations promulgated by the U.S. Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission under Title I of the ADA. The System will generally, upon 
request, provide appropriate aids and services leading to effective communication for qualified 
persons with disabilities so they can participate equally in the System’s programs, services, and 
activities, including qualified sign language interpreters, assistive listening devices, documents 
in Braille, and other ways of making communications accessible to people who have speech, 
hearing, or vision impairments. The System will make reasonable modifications to policies, 
procedures, and programs to ensure that people with disabilities have an equal opportunity to 
enjoy all of its programs, services, and activities. Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or 
service for effective communication, or a modification of policies or procedures to participate in 
a program, service, or activity of the System, should contact the ADA Coordinator. The ADA 
does not require the System to take any action that would fundamentally alter the natures of its 
programs or services or impose an undue financial or administrative burden. Complaints that a 
program, service, or activity of the System is not accessible to persons with disabilities should be 
directed to the ADA Coordinator. 

ADA Coordinator: (INSERT THE NAME OF ADA COORDINATOR) 
Email: (INSERT THE ADA COORDINATOR’S EMAIL ADDRESS) 

Telephone: (INSERT THE ADA COORDINATOR’S TELEPHONE NUMBER) 
Address: (INSERT THE ADA COORDINATOR’S ADDRESS) 

III. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE 

This Policy applies to all System employees, applicants for employment, and members of the 
general public the receives services from the System. 

IV. POLICY COMPLIANCE 

The System and its institutions are subject to this Policy and all related procedures and forms. 
Each Institution’s ADA Coordinator is the responsible official for the implementation of this 
Policy on the institutional level. 



3 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 

Violations or failure to adhere to this Policy may result in action under the appropriate 
handbook for faculty and staff, including termination, and discipline under the appropriate 
code of conduct for students. 

V. POLICY DEFINITIONS 

A. ADA Coordinator: The System’s representative responsible for facilitating the 
interactive evaluation process relative to any request for accommodation. Each institution 
of the System shall name an ADA Coordinator. The ADA Coordinator’s contact 
information shall be available on the website of each institution of the System. 

B. Direct Threat: A significant risk of substantial harm to the health or safety of an 
individual with a disability or others that cannot be eliminated or reduced by reasonable 
accommodation. 

C. Disability: Under the ADA, an individual with a disability is a person who: (1) has a 
physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities; 
(2) has a record of such impairment; or (3) is regarded as having such impairment as 
described in the aforementioned item #1. 

D. Essential Functions: The fundamental and primary job duties of a position. 
Considerations in determining whether a function is essential include such factors as the 
written job description; whether the reason the position exists is to perform that function; 
the limited number of employees available to perform that function; and the degree of 
expertise required to perform the function. 

E. Impairment: Any physiological, mental, or psychological disorder or condition, 
including those that are episodic or in remission, that substantially limits one or more 
major life activities when active. 

F. Major Life Activities: 

1. Generally, caring for oneself, performing manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, 
sleeping, walking, standing, sitting, reaching, lifting, bending, speaking, 
breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, communicating, interacting 
with others, and working; and 

2. The operation of a major bodily function, including functions of the immune 
system, special sense organs and skin; normal cell growth; and digestive, 
genitourinary, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, 
cardiovascular, endocrine, hemic, lymphatic, musculoskeletal, and reproductive 
functions. The operation of a major bodily function includes the operation of an 
individual organ within a body system. 

G. Qualified Individual: 
1. Under Title I, an individual with a disability who meets the requisite skill, 

experience, and education requirements for the position and who can perform 
the essential functions of the position held or applied for, with or without 
reasonable accommodation(s). 

2. Under Title II, an individual with a disability who meets the essential eligibility 



4 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 

requirements for the receipt of services or the participation in programs or 
activities provided by the System, with or without reasonable 
accommodation(s). 

H. Reasonable Accommodations: 
1. Under Title I, a modification or adjustment to the work environment that will 

enable a qualified individual with a disability to: 
i. Participate in the testing, application, or interview process; 
ii. Perform the essential functions of the job; or 
iii. Provide equal opportunity to the benefits and privileges of employment. 

2. Under Title II, a modification that permits an individual with a disability to 
effectively communicate with the System or ensure equal opportunity relative to 
the System’s programs, services, activities, and facilities. 

I. Southern University System or System: The Southern University System and its 
institutions. 

J. Substantially Limits: An impairment that prevents the ability of an individual to 
perform one or more major life activities as compared to most people in the general 
population when taking into consideration factors such as the nature, severity, duration, 
and long-term impact of the condition. Such consideration must be regardless of any 
mitigating measures such as modifications, auxiliary aids or medications used to lessen 
the effects of the condition (except for use of ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses). 

K. Undue Hardship: An accommodation that would be unduly costly, extensive, 
substantial or disruptive, in light of factors such as the size of the System, the resources 
available, and the nature of the System’s business operations. 

VI. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES 

A. PROCEDURES FOR REQUESTING A REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION 

It is the responsibility of the qualified individual with a disability to request a 
reasonable accommodation when needed. To do so, the individual: 

• May initiate a request either verbally, in writing, or via online platform. 
• Must submit the request to the ADA Coordinator or designated personnel; and 
• Must timely and cooperatively participate in the interactive process as further 

described therein. 

If the accommodation request is from a System employee, the employee may be 
required, as part of the interactive process, to provide the ADA Coordinator with 
medical documentation from their health care provider describing the nature of the 
disability and the functional limitations thereof. 

1. Employment (Title I) 

a. Application/Testing Process 



5 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 

A qualified individual with a disability may address an accommodation 
request relative to the application or testing process to the following, 
dependent upon the job type indicated on the vacancy announcement: 

i. For Classified Jobs: Contact State Civil Service, Testing and 
Recruiting Office at (225) 925-1911. For more information 
regarding accommodations, applicants may go to 
https://jobs.civilservice.louisiana.gov/TestInformation/Accommo
dations.aspx.  

ii. For Unclassified Jobs: Contact the System representative 
identified in the vacancy announcement for the job being sought. 
The System representative shall notify and collaborate with the 
ADA Coordinator to address the accommodation request. 

b. Interview Process 

If contacted for an interview, a qualified individual with a disability 
should notify the hiring manager at that time if an accommodation is 
needed in order to participate in the interview and, if so, the nature of the 
accommodation. The hiring manager shall notify and collaborate with 
the ADA Coordinator to address the accommodation request. 

c. Performance of Essential Functions 

A qualified individual with a disability may address an accommodation 
request related to the performance of the essential functions of a job to 
the following: 

i. If needed prior to or at the time of hire for a position, the 
accommodation request should be submitted to the person with 
whom the individual interviewed. 

ii. If employed by the System and needed for the current job held, 
the accommodation request should be addressed to the immediate 
supervisor. 

The interviewer or immediate supervisor shall notify and collaborate 
with the ADA Coordinator to address the accommodation request. Such 
requests must include the duties the individual is unable to perform and 
the accommodation(s) requested. Such accommodations may include job 
restructuring, use of accrued paid leave (or once exhausted, unpaid 
leave), modified or part-time work schedules, acquiring equipment, or 
reassignment. 

d. Benefits and Privileges of Employment 

An employee seeking an accommodation related to the benefits or 



6 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 

privileges associated with employment should notify the immediate 
supervisor. The immediate supervisor shall notify and collaborate with 
the ADA Coordinator to address the accommodation request. Such 
requests should include the benefits or privileges of employment in 
which the individual is unable to participate and the accommodation 
requested. Such accommodations may include restructuring work areas, 
lunchrooms, break rooms, training rooms and restrooms to make them 
available and accessible to all employees. 

NOTE: Guidelines that govern facility standards are based on the 
date of original construction. Additional guidelines may apply 
when renovations or alterations are undertaken. The System shall 
coordinate construction and renovation in conjunction with 
appropriate state departments, as well as building code, regulatory 
and leasing entities, as applicable. 

e. Pregnancy, Childbirth, or Related Medical Condition 

In accordance with La. R.S. 23:341-342, an applicant or employee with 
limitations arising from pregnancy, childbirth or related medical 
conditions may request an accommodation to the immediate supervisor. 
The immediate supervisor shall notify and collaborate with the ADA 
Coordinator to address the accommodation request. Such 
accommodations may include but are not limited to: providing more 
frequent, compensated break periods; providing a private place, other 
than a bathroom stall, for purposes of expressing breast milk; modifying 
food or drink policy; and other accommodations that permit the 
individual to reduce or eliminate the need for leave. 

NOTE: Accommodation requests and information collected during the associated 
interactive process shall be limited to only those individuals with a business need-
to-know. 

2. Effective Communication (Title II) 

A qualified individual with a speech, hearing or vision impairment may request 
an accommodation to the ADA Coordinator and shall be furnished with 
appropriate auxiliary aids and services so that the individual can participate 
equally in the System’s programs, services, and activities. Such auxiliary aids 
may include qualified sign language interpreters, documents in Braille, and other 
ways of making information and communication accessible. Anyone who 
requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication should contact 
the ADA Coordinator as soon as possible but no later than forty-eight (48) hours 
before the scheduled event. If notice of the scheduled event occurs less than 
forty-eight (48) hours before the scheduled event, anyone who requires an 
auxiliary aid or service for effective communication should contact the ADA 
Coordinator at least eight (8) hours before the scheduled event. 



7 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 

Requests for reasonable accommodations regarding meetings of the Southern 
University System Board of Supervisors shall be directed to the System Director 
for Compliance at ADAOpenMeetings@sus.edu at least eight (8) hours before 
the scheduled meeting. 

3. Modifications to Policies, Procedures, or Facilities (Title II) 

A qualified individual with a disability seeking modifications to policies, 
procedures, or facilities for equal opportunity to enjoy the System’s programs, 
services, and activities should contact the ADA Coordinator. Such requests 
should include the specific program, service, or facility that the individual is 
unable to access and the accommodation(s) requested. 

B. INTERACTIVE PROCESS – EVALUATION OF ACCOMMODATION REQUESTS 

Upon receipt, the individual to whom an accommodation request was submitted must 
immediately notify the ADA Coordinator. The ADA Coordinator shall: 

• Document the request, if not submitted in writing by the requestor, on the 
appropriate form or online platform; 

• Notify the requestor, if he/she is a current System employee, whether a 
completed medical inquiry form from a health care provider is required; 

• Engage in an interactive process involving consultation with the requestor, the 
Human Resources Director, the treating physician (if applicable) and 
appropriate management personnel; 

• Confer with the Louisiana Rehabilitation Services and/or Job Accommodation 
Network (JAN), as deemed appropriate, to help evaluate the availability of 
accommodation options and resources related thereto; 

• Where appropriate, discuss any alternative, equally effective accommodations 
with the requestor; 

• Make a final determination of the accommodation request; and 
• Notify the requestor, in writing, of the final determination, including 

information regarding the internal grievance procedure. 

Individuals with disabilities are encouraged to suggest accommodations based upon 
their own life or work experiences. Such requested accommodations will be duly 
considered. Nonetheless, the System reserves the right to select an equally effective 
accommodation that may be less expensive or impactful on business operations. All 
accommodation requests will be evaluated thoroughly and objectively on a case-by-case 
basis. 

Reasonable accommodations for System employees shall be evaluated at least every 
ninety (90) days unless a permanent accommodation is provided. Permanent 
accommodations must be approved by the System Director for Compliance and Human 
Resources Director and are reviewed at least annually. 

C. INTERNAL COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 



8 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 

The following internal grievance procedures are available to individuals with 
disabilities for resolution of complaints regarding the disposition of an accommodation 
request or asserting any action that would be prohibited by the ADA: 

1. Employees 

a. Appeals 

The System employee wishing to initiate an appeal must do so within ten 
(10) days from the date of denial or modification of a reasonable 
accommodation by submitting a written complaint to ADA Coordinator. 

Upon receiving a written notice of appeal, the ADA Coordinator shall 
provide a copy of the employee’s entire file to System Director for 
Compliance or his/her designee for adjudication of the appeal. 

Upon receipt of the appeal, the System Director for Compliance or 
his/her designee shall have fourteen (14) days to issue a written decision 
to the employee. This decision is the final authority on the matter. 

b. Discrimination 

Any complaints of discrimination by a System employee due to said 
employee’s disability shall be made to Human Resources and handled by 
Human Resources pursuant to the System’s Discrimination, Harassment, 
Sexual Harassment, and Sexual Violence Policy. However, any 
discrimination based on pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical 
condition shall be filed with the Title IX Coordinator pursuant to the 
System’s Power-Based Violence/Sexual Misconduct (Policy Number 6-
001) and Title IX Formal Grievance Procedure (Policy Number 6-002) 
Policies. 

2. Applicants or General Public 

Complaints regarding the application/testing/interview process for employment 
or accessibility of a program, service, or activity of the System shall be 
addressed to the respective ADA Coordinator for the System’s institution. The 
ADA Coordinator will acknowledge receipt of the complaint and provide 
written response within thirty (30) days. 

D. RETALIATION PROHIBITION 

No individual shall be discriminated or retaliated against, coerced, intimidated, 
threatened, harassed, or interfered with for: 

• Making an accommodation request; 
• Opposing any act or practice made unlawful by the ADA; 
• Filing a charge, testifying, assisting, or otherwise participating in an 



9 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 

investigation, proceeding, or hearing to enforce any provision of the ADA; 
• Aiding or encouraging another individual in the exercise of any right granted or 

protected by the ADA; or 
• Having a family, business, social, or other relationship or association with an 

individual with a known disability. 

E. TRAININGS 

1. ADA Coordinators 

Pursuant to La. R.S. 46:2595(A)(2), all ADA Coordinators in the System shall 
receive a minimum of one hour of education and training on the Americans with 
Disability Act within ninety (90) days of hire or appointment to a supervisory 
position and every three years thereafter. This education and training may be 
received in person or via the internet through training and education materials 
approved by the System Director for Compliance. 

The System Director for Compliance shall ensure compliance with this Section. 

2. Supervisors 

Pursuant to La. R.S. 46:2595(A)(1), all supervisors in the System shall receive a 
minimum of one hour of education and training on the Americans with 
Disability Act within ninety (90) days of hire or appointment to a supervisory 
position and every three years thereafter. This education and training may be 
received in person or via the internet through training and education materials 
approved by the ADA Coordinator in consultation with the System Director for 
Compliance. 

The ADA Coordinator shall ensure compliance with this Section. 

F. DATA PUBLICATIONS 

The ADA Coordinator shall compile an annual report by January Tenth (10) of each 
year for the previous calendar year for the ADA Coordinator’s respective institution, 
which shall include the following required information from La. R.S. 46:2596: 

• The number and percentage of supervisors and ADA Coordinators, respectively, 
who have completed the training requirements; 

• The number, nature, and cost of accommodation requests granted; 
• The number of accommodation requests denied; 
• The amount of time required to resolve each request form date of receipt to the 

date the individual was notified in writing of the final determination of the 
request; and 

• Number of ADA-related charges of discrimination filed with the United States 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, Louisiana Commission on 
Human Rights, and the United State Department of Justice and civil actions 



10 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 

filed in state and federal court. 

The ADA Coordinator’s annual report shall be submitted to the System Director for 
Compliance by January Fifteenth (15) of each year. 

The System Director for Compliance shall compile ADA Coordinator’s annual reports 
into a System annual report and submit to the Office of the State Americans with 
Disabilities Act Coordinator within the Office of the Governor, Division of 
Administration by February First (1) of year. 

G. STATE AS A MODEL EMPLOYER 

Pursuant to La. R.S. 46:2597, all employees, at the time of employment and every five 
years thereafter, complete a voluntary self-identification of disability form for effective 
data collection and analysis for the percentage of individuals with disabilities employed 
by the System. The form shall only request disclosure regarding whether an employee 
has a disability, without reference to or identification of the actual impairment, 
disability, or medical condition. The completed form shall be confidential and filed in a 
folder separate from the employee’s personnel file. The ADA Coordinator in 
conjunction with the Human Resources Director shall ensure compliance with this 
Paragraph. 

The System Director for Compliance in consultation with the Human Resources 
Directors of each institution of the System shall prepare and submit a System plan, by 
December First (1) of each year, to the Office of the State Americans with Disabilities 
Act Coordinator within the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, that 
includes the strategies and goals for the upcoming year and the progress and outcomes 
for the current year, related to employment of individuals with disabilities.  

H. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Any conflicts of interest regarding the ADA Coordinator shall be resolved by the 
System Director for Compliance or his/her designee. Any conflicts of interest regarding 
the System Director for Compliance shall be resolved by the General Counsel or his/her 
designee. 

I. CONFIDENTIALITY 

All documentation obtained as part of an accommodation request, including medical 
and other relevant information, shall be maintained as confidential records, separate 
from the employee’s personnel file, and subject to disclosure only as allowed by law or 
with the individual’s permission. 

VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION 

• Americans with Disability Act and its Amending Act of 2008 
• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
• Louisiana Employment Discrimination Law (La. R.S. 23:301, et seq.) 



11 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 

• La. R.S. 46:2591, et seq. 
• La. R.S. 42:14(E) 
• La. R.S. 42:17.2.1 

VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE  

The System Office for Compliance in conjunction with the ADA Coordinators for each 
institution of the Southern University System will be charged with implementing this, Policy. 

This Policy replaces any current System policy on Title I and Title II of the ADA and is subject 
to a five-year policy review cycle. 

VIII. POLICY URL 

The information regarding the Americans with Disabilities Act Policy will be posted to the 
System Board’s website under Board Policies at www.sus.edu and on each of the Institution’s 
websites.  

IX. POLICY APPROVAL    

The effective date of this Policy is determined by the approval date of the President-Chancellor 
of the Southern University and A&M College System and the Board of Supervisors of the 
Southern University and A&M College System.  

  
________________________________________________              ______ ___________  
Dennis J. Shields        Effective Date of Policy   
President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System  
  
  
________________________________________________  ______ ___________  
The Honorable Myron K. Lawson         Effective Date of Policy  
Chair – Southern University System Board of Supervisors   
 
 





 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
Violations or failure to adhere to this Policy may result in action under the appropriate handbook 
for faculty and staff, including termination. 
 

IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS 

 
None. 
 

V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES 

 
The Office of Vice President for Finance and Business Affairs shall coordinate the development 
of a Comprehensive Loss Prevention Plan for the System in compliance with Louisiana laws and 
the rules and regulations established by the Louisiana Office of Risk Management. 
 
The Comprehensive Loss Prevention Plan and its components shall be approved by the President 
and comprised of the following components: 

• General Safety Program 
o Management Policy Statement 
o Assignment of Safety Responsibility 
o Inspection Program 
o Jos Safety Analysis 
o Investigation Program 
o Safety Meetings 
o Safety Rules 
o Employee Training 
o First Aid Program 
o Transitional Return to Work Policy 
o Blood Borne Pathogens Program 
o Drug-Free Workplace Policy 
o Emergency Preparedness Plan 
o Hazardous Materials 

• Driver Safety Program 
• Bonds, Crime, and Property Program 
• Equipment Management Program 
• Water Vessel Safety Program (if required) 
• Flight Operations Safety Program (if required) 
• Any other program developed by the Loss Prevention Unit of the Louisiana Office of Risk 

Management for the prevention of or reduction in events that may cause injury, illness, 
property damage, or any other damage/loss. 

 
VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION  

 
• La. R.S. 39:1543 
• La. R.S. 49:1001, et seq. 



 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE 

 
The Office of Vice President for Finance and Business Affairs along with each campuses’ Office 
of Vice Chancellor for Finance and Management will be charged with implementing this Policy. 
 
This Policy replaces and supersedes any previous policies regarding any components of the 
Comprehensive Loss Prevention Plan and is subject to a five-year review cycle. 
 

VIII. POLICY URL 

 
The approved policy will be posted on the Southern University System website under Board 
Policies at www.sus.edu.  
 

IX. POLICY APPROVAL   

 
The effective date of this policy is determined by the approval date of the President-Chancellor of 
the Southern University and A&M College System and the Board of Supervisors of the Southern 
University and A&M College System.  
  
  
________________________________________________              ______________________  
Dennis J. Shields         Effective Date of Policy   
President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System  
 
________________________________________________  _______________________  
The Honorable Myron K. Lawson         Effective Date of Policy  
Chair – Southern University System Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Personnel 
 
 
 



PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
(Following Governance Committee) 

September 15, 2023 
 9:00 am 

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA.  
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1.  Call to Order  
 
2.  Roll Call 
 
3.  Adoption of the Agenda 
 
4.  Public Comments 
 
5. Action Item(s) 
 

A. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than $60,000 
(SUNO) 

Name Position/Campus Description Waived/Search Salary Funding Source 

1. Precious 
Alridge 

AVC Student Affairs/ 
Director of Student 

Development 
Title Change 

Title Change ONLY due to 
reorganization N/A $112,000.00 State/Federal 

2. David Bocage 

Associate Director/ 
Academic Coach for 

Student Support Services 
Title Change 

Title Change and Salary Increase 
for Newly Funded Grant N/A $65,000.00 Federal 

3. Rebecca 
Chaisson 

Dean of the School of 
Social Work 

Equity Increase 
Equity Increase for the Dean of 

Social Work N/A $105,000.00 State 

4.  Linda 
Frederick 

Executive Director of Trio 
College Program 

Title Change 
Title Change and Salary Increase 

for Newly Funded Grant N/A $89,000.00 Federal 

5. Heather 
Freeman 

AVC for Enrollment 
Management & Student 

Success/ Director of 
University College 

Title Change 
Title Change ONLY Due to 

Reorganization  N/A $105,000.00 State/ Federal 

6. Atia 
Washington 

Executive Director for 
Admissions, Recruitment 

and Dual Enrollment 
Title Change 

Title Change and Salary Increase 
Due to Reorganization  N/A $85,000.00 State 

7. Constance 
Woods 

Director, Connecting 
Minority Communities 

New Appointment   Search $72,000.00 Federal 
 

 



B. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than $60,000 
(SUBR) 

Name Position/Campus Description Waived/Search Salary Funding Source 

1. Jourdan Hilaire 

Interim Director of First and 
Second-Year Experience 

 

 

N/A $66,000.00 State 

2. Anthony 
Jackson 

Interim VC for Enrollment 
Management 

New Appointment 

 

N/A $140,000.00 State 

3. Lealon 
 Martin 

Dean of College of Science 
and Engineering 

New Appointment 

 

Search $205,000.00 State 

4. Patrick     
               Mensah 

Senior Associate VC of 
Academic Affairs 

New Appointment 

 

Waived $ 204,000.00 State/Federal 

5. Cedric  
Noel 

Director of the Student Union 
and Scheduling 

Salary Adjustment 

 

N/A $60,000.00 State 

6. Avis O’Bryant-
Chaney 

Interim AVC for Student 
Success 

New Appointment 

 

N/A $96,000.00 State/ Federal 

7. Jovan Thomas 

Interim Dean of University 
College 

New Appointment 

 

N/A $90,000.00 State/ Federal 

8. Michael 
Wells 

Interim Executive Director of 
Admissions 

New Appointment 

 

N/A $81,000.00 State 
 

 
C. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than $60,000 

(SUS) 
Name Position/Campus Description Waived/Search Salary Funding Source 

1. Christopher 
Freeman 

Vice President of 
Advancement Operations 

New Position 
Position recommended to 

support the Capital Campaign Search $130,000.00 

Southern University 
System Foundation 

(SUSF) 

2. Morkieth 
Phillips 

Executive Director of the 
Honore’ Center 

Title Change and 
Salary Increase 

Duties have expanded to include 
programming throughout the 

system Waived $95,000.00 State 

3. John Pierre 

Interim Executive Vice 
President/Chief Academic 

Officer 
6-month appointment to assist 

with SUBR Operations  N/A $54,000.00 State 

4. Biyaka 
Williams 

Vice President of Institutional 
and Legacy Giving 

New Position 
Position recommended to 

support the Capital Campaign Search $140,000.00 

Southern University 
System Foundation 

(SUSF) 
 
 

D. Request Approval of Recommendation for Prior Service Credit at Other Institutions 
for Associate Professor Ryan Stoa (SULC) 

 
E. Request Approval of Faculty Merit Increases (SUNO) 
 

 



6. Other Business 

 
7. Adjournment       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMBERS 
Mr. Sam Gilliam - Chairman, Mrs. Christy Reeves–Vice-Chair, 

Atty. Jody Amedee, Ms. Zazell Dudley, Dr. Leon Tarver, II, and Dr. Arlanda Williams,  
Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio  



 
 

SUNO 
 
 
 



































































































 
 

SUBR 
 
 
 



                           Office of the Executive Vice Chancellor 
 

J.S. Clark Administration Building 
Post Office Box 9820 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 
Office:  225 771-2360 

 
 

August 24, 2023 
 
 

Mr. Dennis J. Shields 
President/Chancellor 
Southern University System & Baton Rouge Campus 
4th Floor, J. S. Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 

RE:  Salary Adjustment for Mr. Jourdan Hilaire, Extra-Duties and Responsibilities  
 

Dear President Shields: 
 
Mr. Jourdan Hilaire, Director of First and Second-Year Experience, University College, has the important role and 
responsibility of ensuring that our students have a quality first and second year experience, one that provides them 
with a solid foundation for successfully completing their degree. Based upon my review of this office, I am 
recommending that the duties and responsibilities of Mr. Hilaire be expanded to include fostering a closer 
relationship with the academic units by implementing programs and activities that engage faculty towards 
increasing the retention of first- and second-year students and securing additional sources of support for the Jaguar 
Success Academy and first- and second-year programs and activities.   
 
Mr. Hilaire has extensive experience with the first- and second-year experience, and he is highly 
organized, energetic, a highly effective communicator, and task oriented. He also has the leadership and 
interpersonal skills, and resilience required for the additional duties and responsibilities. The resume of 
Mr. Hilaire is attached for review. 
 
The proposed salary adjustment is an additional $7,000 (annual salary of $66,000), effective October 1, 2023. I 
respectfully request that my recommendation be presented to the Southern University Board of Supervisors for 
consideration and approval at their September board meeting. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
     Sincerely, 
 
 
 
     John K. Pierre, Esq. 
     Interim Executive Vice President 
 
 
APPROVED:        
  Dennis J. Shields 





JOB CLASS 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

JOB CODE 

CAL ID 

Personnel Action Form ._J _�o_u_:_!_i_�_N _ __.l'-2---'-I _M_._I _& ___._l_?_ ..... l _4___.l_i_ 
CAMPUS: SUS SUBR x SULAC SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 

Academic 

__ Temporary 
Tenured 
Tenured Track 

__ Other (Specify) 

9-MONTH 12-MONTH X 

X Non-Academic 
---

--- Part-time ( % of Full Time) 
___ Undergraduate Student 

Graduate Assistant ---
Retiree Return To Work ---

OTHER __ (Specify) 

Civil Service 
---

Restricted 
---

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status 
---

Previous Employee Jacqueline Preastly -------�---------- Reason Left 
Salary Paid Date Left 

Profile of Person Recommended 
To Length of Employment _10_ / _01_/_20_2_3 __________ _ -----------------

Effective Date 10/01/2023 
---------------------

Name Anthony T. Jackson SS# UOI 724020 Sex M -----

Position Title: 
(Last 4 digits only) 

Interim Vice Chancellor for Enrollment Manager  Department: Academic Affairs 

Check One _x_ Existing Position 

New Position 

*Visa Type (See Reverse Side):

(Position vacancy authorization form must be processed and approved to fill existing 
and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if applicable.) 

Expiration Date: 

Race* B 

IL]

Years Experience _23 _______________ Southern University Experience _9 __________ _ 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

PHD-Ed Leadership & Research _L _S _U_- _B _a _to_n_ R--'-o _u=ge ____________ _ 
MA-Teaching Psychology Grambling State University-Grambling, LA 
BA-Marketing Louisiana Tech University-Ruston, LA 

Year: 
2020 
2011 
2004 

Current Employer SUBR ----------------------------------------

Personnel Action 

Check One __ New Appointment Continuation 
Replacement 

Sabbatical 
Other (Specify) 

Leave of Absence 
x Transfer 

Recommended Salary _1 _40�•�0 _00 ________ _ 

Source of Funds 211001-22601-61002-26000 

Identify Budget: 
Form Code: 

Change of: 
From 

Salary Budgeted 140,000 

Location 
Page _____ _ Item # 

To 
Position 
Status 

A VC for Student Affairs/Dean of Students Vice Chancellor for Enrollment Management 

Salary Adjustment 107,000 140,000 
Financial Aid signature (if, applicable): 

List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side

II· Comments: (Use back of form) 

*See Reverse Side

irector/Personnel 

President 

216080-27052-61002-29000 107,000 

Graduate School signature (if, applicable): 

Date 

Date 

Chancellor 

Vice President/Finance 
Business Affairs/Comptroller 

Chairman/S.U. Board 
of Supervisors 

Date 

Date 

Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and 
does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

---

Hispanic or Latino 
------

Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 

---

White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East. 

_x __ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
___ regardless of race. 

---

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
___ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: Dr. Anthony T. Jackson will assume the role of Vice Chancellor for Enrollment Management, 
effective October 1, 2023, following the September Board meeting. He will be Acting in this position as of September 
18, 2023. He will be replacing Dr. Jacqueline Preastly. 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: 8a-5 
__ ....__ __________________ _

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: John Pierre/Dr. Luria Young 

SUPERVISOR/DEPARTMENT CONTACT NUMBER 225-771-4582 
----------------------

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form are to 
report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before starting to work. 
All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement of Account (fee receipt), and 
a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured ID, social security card, birth certificate, 
certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1 visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) 
documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 

offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS): 

TYPE CODE 

United States Citizen/Certificate ofNaturalization US 
Resident Alien RA 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) Hl 
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) J1 
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) Fl 
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience") F0 

Do Not Write Below This Area 

EXPIRES 

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 

Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) 
---

Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
---

Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Human Resources with Criminal/Background Check 
___ form) 

---

---

---

Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 
Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) 
Proposed Employee Appointment 
Proposed Employee Clearance 
Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

Rev. 07/24/2007 







JOB CLASS 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

JOB CODE 

CAL ID 

Personnel Action Form �1-�o_u_�_1!_i_�_N_�1 _2_1�M-�l-9_�1 _7_�1 _l �1-6�1
CAMPUS: SUS SUBR x SULAC SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 

Academic 
Temporary 
Tenured 
Tenured Track 
Other (Specify) 

9-MONTH 12-MONTH x OTHER

X 
---

---
Non-Academic 
Part-time ( % of Full Time) 

---
---

(Specify) 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

--- Undergraduate Student ___ Job Appointment 
Graduate Assistant --- ___ Probationary 
Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status 

---

Previous Employee _B....,.ij'----o..._y_S_a_h_o _o ____________ _ 
Date Left 11/2019 

Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

Transferred to another position 
160,000 ---------------------

Profile of Person Recommended 

Length of Employment _O_ct_._l�, _2_02_3 __________ _
Effective Date 10/01/2023 ---------------------

SS# 001748282 

To 

Sex M Name Patrick Fitzgerald Mensah, Sr. 
-----

(Last 4 digits only) 

Position Title: Senior Associate VC for Academic Affairs Department: Academic Affairs 

Check One x Existing Position 

New Position 

*Visa Type (See Reverse Side):

Expiration Date: 
(Position vacancy authorization form must be processed and approved to fill 

existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if 

applicable.) 

Years Experience _32 _______________ Southern University Experience 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

32 

PhD-Engineering Science _c.cL
...:.
S

....:
U_-_B_a-'---

to
'----
n-R-----'-o_u=g�e''----L_ A ___________ _ 

MS-Mechanical Engineering 
BS-Mechanical Engineering 

University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee, WI 
University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee, WI 

Race* 

101 

Year: 
1998 
1991 
1988 

Current Employer _S_U _B_R ___________________________________ _ 

Check One New Appointment 
x Transfer 

Recommended Salary 

Source of Funds 

204,cro.co 

Identify Budget: 
Form Code: 

Change of: 

Personnel Action 

Continuation 
__ Replacement 

From 

Sabbatical 
Other (Specify) 

Salary Budgeted 

Location 
Page _____ _ 

x Leave of Absence 

204,000.00 

Item # 
----------

To 
Position 
Status 

Assoc. Dean for Research -CoEngr Sr. Assoc. VC for Academic Affairs 

Salary Adjustment 95,000 204,cro.co 
Financial Aid signature (if, applicable): 

List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds 
>---

Amount 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side

II Comments: (Use back of form) 

*See Reverse Side

Director/Personnel 

President 

�11C01-22C02-61C02-2c0'.Xl . -�
153,cro.co 

Graduate School signature (if, applicable): 

Date 

Date 

Chancellor 

Vice President/Finance 
Business Affairs/Comptroller 

Chairman/S.U. Board 
of Supervisors 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and 
does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

Hispanic or Latino 
------

Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 

White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East. 

X Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

---

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

---

---

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: Dr. Patrick F. Mensah, Sr. will assume the role of Senior Associate Vice Chancellor for Academic 
Affairs, effective October 1, 2023, after the September 2023 Board Meeting. He will be Acting in that position 
beginning September 18, 2023. This position was vacated by Dr. Bijoy Sahoo in 2019 when he was transferred to 
another position. 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: 8a-5 
__ ..__ __________________ _

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: _J_o_h_n _P_ i _e _re _/L_a_ u_ r_ia_Y _o _u _ng"'-------------

SUPERVISOR/DEPARTMENT CONTACT NUMBER 225-771-4852/2360 
----------------------

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form are to 
report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before starting to work. 
All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement of Account (fee receipt), and 
a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured ID, social security card, birth 
certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1 visas, passport, and F-l/I-94. The latter 
six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 

offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT MSA STATUS): 

TYPE CODE EXPIRES 

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization US 
Resident Alien RA 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) Hl 
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) Jl 

F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) Fl 

OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience") F0 

Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 

---

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 

---

Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) 

Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
---

---

Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Human Resources with Criminal/Background Check form) 

---

Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 

---

Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) 

---

Proposed Employee Appointment 

---

Proposed Employee Clearance 

---

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

Rev. 07/24/2007 









                           Office of the Executive Vice Chancellor 
 

J.S. Clark Administration Building 
Post Office Box 9820 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 
Office:  225 771-2360 

 
 
Mr. Dennis J. Shields 
President/Chancellor 
August 31, 2023 
Southern University System & Baton Rouge Campus 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 
4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
RE: Request to appoint Avis C. O'Bryant-Chaney as Interim Assistant Vice- 
Chancellor for Student Success in the Office of Academic Affairs for the 
Southern University-Baton Rouge campus 
 
Dear President Shields: 
 
The departure of Dr. Zacheus Johnson from the Office of Academic Affairs has created a void on 
the Southern University-Baton Rouge campus. Dr. Johnson served as the Assistant Vice- 
Chancellor for Student Success and Dean of the University College. Based upon my observation, 
it is my recommendation that the dual position held by Dr. Johnson be divided. Therefore, it is my 
recommendation that Avis C. O'Bryant-Chaney be appointed as Interim Assistant Vice-Chancellor 
for Student Success. 
 
Separating these positions will be beneficial to the Southern University-Baton Rouge campus. This 
would allow an administrator to focus on student success and will assist the Baton Rouge campus 
to improve graduation and retention rates, and other student-centered systems of measurements. 
Ms. O'Bryant-Chaney served as Executive Assistant to Dr Johnson and Director of Special 
Programs for Title III. She has also served in the following capacities: (1) Director of First and 
Second-Year Programs, and Director of the Emerging JAG Program (2) Associate Director of the 
First and Second-Year Experience Program, (3) Academic Coach for the Center for Student 
Success, ( 4) Director of the Writing Center, and (5) Assistant to the Director of Student Affairs at 
Denmark Technical College. 
 
Ms. O'Bryant-Chaney's knowledge, enthusiasm, diligence, energy, analytical skills, creativity, and 
attention to detail are very impressive. These characteristics and her professional progression will 
serve her well in the role as Interim Assistant Vice-Chancellor for Student Success. Mrs. O'Bryant 
Chaney is funded by Title III in the amount of $61,125. I propose that general funds in the amount 
of $34,875.00 be used to elevate her compensation to $96,000. The CV for Ms. O'Bryant-Chaney 
is attached. 
 
 



I am requesting that this recommendation be presented for review and approval to the Southern 
University Board of Supervisors at their September 2023 board meeting, with an effective date of 
October 1, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Interim Executive Vice-President 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED:_______________________________ _ 
 
Dennis J. Shields 
President/Chancellor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







                           Office of the Executive Vice Chancellor 
 

J.S. Clark Administration Building 
Post Office Box 9820 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 
Office:  225 771-2360 

 
 
Mr. Dennis J. Shields 
President/Chancellor 
August 31, 2023 
Southern University System & Baton Rouge Campus 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 
4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
Dear President Shields: 
 
RE: Request to appoint Dr. Jovan T. Thomas as Interim Dean of the 
University College for the Southern University-Baton Rouge campus 
 
The departure of Dr. Zacheus Johnson, who served as the Assistant Vice-Chancellor for Student Success 
and Dean of the University College in the Office of Academic Affairs has created a void on the Southern 
University-Baton Rouge campus. Based on my observations, it is my recommendation that the dual 
positions held by Dr. Johnson be divided. I am proposing the appointment of Dr. Jovan T. Thomas as 
the Interim Dean of the University College. 
 
Separating these positions will be beneficial to the Southern University-Baton Rouge campus. The 
University College serves all students with 0-60 credit hours, and the needs of these students are enormous 
and are at a substantial risk of academic attrition. The individual in this position will exclusively 
concentrate on increasing first to second-year student retention rate and ultimately graduation rates, both 
of which are critical benchmarks. 
 
It is important that the University College is led by an individual that has a keen focus on the operations 
of this college. The individual best qualified and possesses the leadership to meet the needs of the 
University College is Dr. Jovan T. Thomas. His diligence, knowledge, analytical ability, and attention to 
detail are very impressive. Dr. Thomas is currently the Executive Director for Student Success and has 
previously served as Director of Academic Advising, Assistant Director of First and Second-Year 
Experience, and an Academic Advisor. Based on his professionalism, experience, and maturity, this makes 
him an ideal candidate as Interim Dean of the University College. 
 
Dr. Thomas is funded by Title III in the amount of $72,500. I propose an increase in his salary of 
$17,500 utilizing general funds. The total amount of bis compensation will be $90,000, with an 
effective date of October 1, 2023. The CV for Dr Thomas is attached. 
 
 
 



I am requesting that this recommendation be presented for review and approval by the Board of 
Supervisors at their September 2023 board meeting. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Interim Executive Vice-President 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED: ______ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 
Dennis J. Shields 
President/Chancellor 







                           Office of the Executive Vice Chancellor 
 

J.S. Clark Administration Building 
Post Office Box 9820 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 
Office:  225 771-2360 

 
 
Mr. Dennis J. Shields 
President/Chancellor 
August 31, 2023 
Southern University System & Baton Rouge Campus 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 
4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
RE: Appointment of Michael Wells as Interim Executive Director of Admission and 
Recruitment 
 
Dear President Shields: 
 
There is a need to fill the vacancy created by the departure of Ms. Heather Freeman as the Executive 
Director of Admission and Recruitment at the Southern University Baton Rouge campus. The position is a 
critical position and needs to be filled immediately. 
 
Based upon my review of the situation, I am recommending that Mr. Michael Wells be appointed as the 
Interim Executive Director of Admissions and Recruitment. Mr. Wells has extensive experience in 
admissions and recruitment at SUBR. He also has the leadership skills, motivation, grit, and resilience. 
required for this position. His resume is attached for your review. 
 
The proposed salary for Mr. Wells will be $81,000 with a proposed start date of October 1, 2023. 
I respectfully request that my recommendation be presented to the Southern University Board of 
Supervisors for consideration and approval at their September board meeting. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Interim Executive Vice- President 
 
 
 
APPROVED:_______________________________ _ 
 
Dennis J. Shields 
President/Chancellor 



























Imagine Southern
Feasibility Study Final 
Report

CONTACT: Brenda Asare, President & CEO, basare@alford.com
 Michelle Bibbs, Senior Consultant, mbibbs@alford.com
 Don Cooke, Vice-President, dcooke@alford.com
 Mary Hackett, Vice-President, mhackett@alford.com
 Kelly Klein, Senior Consultant, kklein@alford.com
 Shay Upadhyay, Client Service Associate, 
        supadhyay@alford.com

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM FOUNDATION BOARD MEETING
8/10/23

Confidential, not for duplication – property of Southern University System Foundation 
and Alford Group

mailto:basare@alford.com
mailto:mbibbs@alford.com
mailto:dcooke@alford.com
mailto:mhackett@alford.com
mailto:kklein@alford.com
mailto:supadhyay@alford.com


Confidential, not for duplication

Staffing 

Recommendations

88



Executive Summary
The Campaign to realize Southern 
University’s Master Plan stands to 
transform the SU Foundation and 
Advancement program. Based on 
findings from the visioning session, 
interviews, roundtables, surveys 
and donor base assessments 
coupled with industry best 
practices, Alford Group 
recommends that SU invests 
significantly in staffing, training, 
systems and infrastructure to 
balance current workload 
responsibilities with accelerated 
efforts for the campaign. 

89

CEO

Vice President, 
Institutional & 
Legacy Giving

Campaign 
Director, 

Imagine Southern

Vice President, 
Development & 

Marketing

Vice President, 
Advancement & 

Foundation 
Operations

CFO

• Institutional 
Giving/Career 
Services

• Foundation 
and Corporate 
Relations

• Planned 
Giving

• Campus Team 
coordination

• Up to 31 staff

 9 existing
 10 added in 

FY23 
 3 added in 

FY24
 9 added in 

FY25

• Campaign 
strategy, 
planning & 
reporting

• Campaign 
prospects & 
donor 
stewardship

• Coordination 
with gift 
officers

• Campaign 
messaging

• 2 staff

 1 added in 
FY24

 1 added in 
FY25

• Annual Fund 
with a focus to 
expand the 
donor pool

• Alumni Affairs & 
Relations

• Advancement 
Comms/ 
Marketing 
including 
graphic design, 
social/print 
media

• Up to 13 staff

 8 existing
 3 in FY24
 2 in FY25

• Donor 
stewardship & 
recognition

• Donor 
engagement

• Portfolio 
management

• Prospect & 
Donor Research

• Gift 
Acknowledge- 
ment

• Performance 
dashboards

• Valdry Center 
programming

• Up to 15 staff

 4 existing
 5 added in FY24
 6 added in FY25

• IT for 
Advancement

• Comptroller & 
accounting

• Gift accounting 
& processing

• Up to 10 staff

 5 existing
 3 added in FY24
 2 added in FY25

General CounselExecutive Assistant

Current Position

New Position

Next staffing hires include
Directors of Development for 
Colleges of Nursing & Allied 
Health and Humanities & 
Interdisciplinary Studies to 
participate in Training 
Institute.



Chancellor

Dean, Lab School

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, College of 
Business

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, Athletics

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, Law Center

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, School of 
Agriculture

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, College of Humanities 
& Interdisciplinary Studies 

Director of 
Development+

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, College of Nursing 
& Allied Health

Director of 
Development+

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator++
+

Dean, Sciences and 
Engineering

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Staffing Recommendations: 
Campus Team (SUBR only)

90

Highlights:

Each school should have or share four positions that are responsible for philanthropic revenue generation. The Dean 
will work a portfolio of 10-20 high-level prospects while the Director of Development and the Major Gift Officer will 
each carry a portfolio of 60-80 prospects. The Coordinator will support scheduling, meeting prep and follow-up and 
other Advancement administrative needs for each unit. All fundraising efforts should be focused at $25,000 and 
above. Depending on the donor constituent base for each unit, some schools and colleges may be able to share gift 
officer or coordinator roles. 

The Directors of Development appear with a reporting change color as there should be a strong dotted line to the 
Vice President, Institutional & Legacy Giving. This ensures that all major gift efforts and grant opportunities are 
coordinated. 

Current Position

Title Change

New Position

Reporting Change

+
++

+++

Implement in FY23

Implement in FY24

Implement in FY25

















































Imagine Southern
Feasibility Study Final 
Report

CONTACT: Brenda Asare, President & CEO, basare@alford.com
 Michelle Bibbs, Senior Consultant, mbibbs@alford.com
 Don Cooke, Vice-President, dcooke@alford.com
 Mary Hackett, Vice-President, mhackett@alford.com
 Kelly Klein, Senior Consultant, kklein@alford.com
 Shay Upadhyay, Client Service Associate, 
        supadhyay@alford.com

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM FOUNDATION BOARD MEETING
8/10/23

Confidential, not for duplication – property of Southern University System Foundation 
and Alford Group

mailto:basare@alford.com
mailto:mbibbs@alford.com
mailto:dcooke@alford.com
mailto:mhackett@alford.com
mailto:kklein@alford.com
mailto:supadhyay@alford.com


Confidential, not for duplication

Staffing 

Recommendations

88



Executive Summary
The Campaign to realize Southern 
University’s Master Plan stands to 
transform the SU Foundation and 
Advancement program. Based on 
findings from the visioning session, 
interviews, roundtables, surveys 
and donor base assessments 
coupled with industry best 
practices, Alford Group 
recommends that SU invests 
significantly in staffing, training, 
systems and infrastructure to 
balance current workload 
responsibilities with accelerated 
efforts for the campaign. 

89

CEO

Vice President, 
Institutional & 
Legacy Giving

Campaign 
Director, 

Imagine Southern

Vice President, 
Development & 

Marketing

Vice President, 
Advancement & 

Foundation 
Operations

CFO

• Institutional 
Giving/Career 
Services

• Foundation 
and Corporate 
Relations

• Planned 
Giving

• Campus Team 
coordination

• Up to 31 staff

 9 existing
 10 added in 

FY23 
 3 added in 

FY24
 9 added in 

FY25

• Campaign 
strategy, 
planning & 
reporting

• Campaign 
prospects & 
donor 
stewardship

• Coordination 
with gift 
officers

• Campaign 
messaging

• 2 staff

 1 added in 
FY24

 1 added in 
FY25

• Annual Fund 
with a focus to 
expand the 
donor pool

• Alumni Affairs & 
Relations

• Advancement 
Comms/ 
Marketing 
including 
graphic design, 
social/print 
media

• Up to 13 staff

 8 existing
 3 in FY24
 2 in FY25

• Donor 
stewardship & 
recognition

• Donor 
engagement

• Portfolio 
management

• Prospect & 
Donor Research

• Gift 
Acknowledge- 
ment

• Performance 
dashboards

• Valdry Center 
programming

• Up to 15 staff

 4 existing
 5 added in FY24
 6 added in FY25

• IT for 
Advancement

• Comptroller & 
accounting

• Gift accounting 
& processing

• Up to 10 staff

 5 existing
 3 added in FY24
 2 added in FY25

General CounselExecutive Assistant

Current Position

New Position

Next staffing hires include
Directors of Development for 
Colleges of Nursing & Allied 
Health and Humanities & 
Interdisciplinary Studies to 
participate in Training 
Institute.



Chancellor

Dean, Lab School

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, College of 
Business

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, Athletics

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, Law Center

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, School of 
Agriculture

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, College of Humanities 
& Interdisciplinary Studies 

Director of 
Development+

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Dean, College of Nursing 
& Allied Health

Director of 
Development+

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator++
+

Dean, Sciences and 
Engineering

Director of 
Development

Major Gift 
Officer+

Coordinator 
+++

Staffing Recommendations: 
Campus Team (SUBR only)

90

Highlights:

Each school should have or share four positions that are responsible for philanthropic revenue generation. The Dean 
will work a portfolio of 10-20 high-level prospects while the Director of Development and the Major Gift Officer will 
each carry a portfolio of 60-80 prospects. The Coordinator will support scheduling, meeting prep and follow-up and 
other Advancement administrative needs for each unit. All fundraising efforts should be focused at $25,000 and 
above. Depending on the donor constituent base for each unit, some schools and colleges may be able to share gift 
officer or coordinator roles. 

The Directors of Development appear with a reporting change color as there should be a strong dotted line to the 
Vice President, Institutional & Legacy Giving. This ensures that all major gift efforts and grant opportunities are 
coordinated. 

Current Position

Title Change

New Position

Reporting Change

+
++

+++

Implement in FY23

Implement in FY24

Implement in FY25



 
Other 

Personnel 
Ac�on Items 



 
 
 
 
 

August 24, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Dennis J. Shields 
President/Chancellor 
Southern University System & Baton Rouge Campus 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 
4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 

  RE:  Requesting credit for prior service at other institutions for Associate                  
Professor Ryan Stoa 

 
Dear President Shields: 
 
Associate Professor Ryan Stoa is respectfully requesting that the Southern University Board of 
Supervisors exercise its discretion and grant him credit for prior service at other institutions. Prior 
to his employment at the Southern University Law Center, he served four years as a tenure-track 
Associate Professor at the Concordia University School of Law from 2016-2020. 
 
Based upon my understanding of the bylaws of the Southern University Board of Supervisors, the 
board has the discretion to grant one year of credit for every two years of service at another 
institution. After reviewing his CV, Stoa could be granted two years of service for the four years 
served at Concordia University School of Law. Professor Stoa has been a productive instructor and 
scholar. It is my recommendation to the Board of Supervisors that they exercise their discretion and 
grant two years of credit to Stoa for his service at Concordia University School of Law at its 
Sepotember’s board meeting. The supporting documentation for this request is attached,  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
     Sincerely, 
 
 
 
     John K. Pierre, Esq. 
     Chancellor and Vanue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor 









 
 

S U Board of 
Supervisors 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
(Following Personnel Affairs Committee) 

September 15, 2023 
 9:00 am 

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA. 
 

AGENDA 
1.       Call to Order  

 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Adoption of the Agenda 
 
4. Public Comments 
 
5.     Resolutions 

6.     Action Item(s) i 

A. Approval of Minutes of the August 18, 2023, SUS Board of Supervisors Meeting 
 

B. Approval of Committee Recommendations 
 

C. Request Approval of CEA between SUBR and SUNO, SULC, SUAREC, and 
SUSLA (SUBR, SUNO, SULC, SUAREC, and SUSLA). Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement between SUBR and SUNO , SULC, SUAREC, and SUSLA to 
memorialize obligations to assist in achieving the outcomes in SUBR’s grant 
from LDH 

 
D. Request Approval for the Restructuring of the Organizational Chart for the 

Southern University System and Baton Rouge Campus. (SUS/SUBR) 
 

E. Annual Evaluation of President-Chancellor 
               
7. Informational Item(s)  

A. Presidential Report 
 

B. Chancellor’s Reports 
 

8.      Other Business 
 

9.      Adjournment  
 

 
i Pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statute 42:17, executive session may be required. 

 



1 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

Friday, August 18, 2023 / 9:00am 
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA.  

 
MINUTES 

 
The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board Chair 
Myron K. Lawson.   
 
The invocation was given by Dr. Mary Johnson who is a member of First Emmauel Missionary 
Baptist Church.  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Tanner Pruitt, a honor student who is a 
Senior at Southern University Lab School.  
 
AGENDA ITEM 3:  RECOGNITION OF SPECIAL GUEST AND PRESENTATION – 
Chairman Myron K. Lawson 
 

A. Southern Lab Recognition (SULS) 

Mr. Brister recognized Ms. Rebecca Marshall 

B. Cricket Team (SUBR) 

Chancellor Pierre and Dr. Trivetti recognized the team. 

C. NASA's 2023 Mentor -Protege Agreement of the Year Award (SUBR) 

Dr. Stubblefield recognized Samuel Walker 

D. Above and Beyond Award 

Chancellor McMeans recognized Ms. Jacqueline Dixon  

E. Check Presentation for the Naming of the Southern University Law Center Courtyard  

Chancellor Pierre introduced Ms. Gayle Walker who will recognize her daughter Ms. 

Ashley Mitchell by naming the SULC Courtyard after her. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4:  ROLL CALL 

Roll Call by President-Chancellor Dennis J. Shields 

Present:  Dr. Leon Tarver - Chairman, Mr. Sam Gilliam –Vice-Chair, Mrs. Maple Gaines, Mrs. Ann 
Smith, Dr. Arlanda Williams and Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio 

Absent: Atty Jody Amedee 



2 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
There was a motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and second by Ms. Zazell Dudley that the agenda was 
recommended for adoption.  
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7: ACTION ITEM(s) 
 

Dr. Ammons gave a summary.  The motion was made by Mr. Sam Gilliam and seconded 
by Dr. Arlanda Williams to approve Action Items 7A.   
  
Motion Approved. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
A. Request Approval of Board of Regents 3-Year Academic Plan 

After an academic program review and market analysis, a long-term assessment was 
developed to identify viable academic programs over the next three years to aid in 
growing enrollment and workforce demands. 
 
1. SUNO 

2. SUBR 

3. SUSLA 

4. SULC 

 

Mr. Brister gave a summary.  The motion was made by Dr. Arlanda Williams and 
seconded by Mrs. Ann Smith to approve Action Items 7B – 7D in global.    
  
Motion Approved. 
 
B. Request Approval of the Literacy Plan Approval – (SULS) 

The Louisiana Department of Education (LDOE) offers a Literacy Plan 
Development Guide and Literacy Plan Framework for Local Education Agencies 
(LEAs) and individual campuses to support student success. Every LEA and campus 
is to develop a Literacy Plan. The planning framework is organized by Louisiana's 
Literacy Pillars and is used to set goals for improving literacy outcomes for students. 
 
 
 



3 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

C. Request Approval of Student Rights and Responsibilities Handbook – (SULS) 
The purpose of the attached handbook is to outline the rights and responsibilities of 
students attending the Southern University Laboratory School. It encompasses 
various important aspects, such as student discipline, hearing protocols, Title IX 
procedures, parental expectations, the school calendar, and guidance regarding 
student conduct. By having a comprehensive and well-defined handbook, we aim to 
create a safe and conducive learning environment for all students. 
 

D. Request Approval of Pupil Progression Policy (SULS) 
According to Bulletin 1566, the Pupil Progression Plan is a comprehensive plan 
developed and adopted by each parish or city school board; it shall be based on 
student performance on the Louisiana Educational Assessment Program with goals 
and objectives that are compatible with the Louisiana Competency-Based Education 
Programs and that supplement standards approved by the State Board of Elementary 
and Secondary Education (SBESE) 
 

Dr. McMeans gave a summary.  The motion was made by Mrs. Ann Smith and seconded 
by Mr. Sam GIlliam to approve Action Items 7E.   
  
Motion Approved. 

 
E. Request Approval for a name change from the College of Agricultural, Family and 

Consumer Sciences to the College of Agricultural, Human and Environmental 
Sciences, from the Department of Agricultural Sciences to the Department of 
Agricultural Sciences and Technology, from the Department of Family and Consumer 
Sciences to the Department of Human Sciences, from Department of Urban Forestry 
and Natural Resources to the Department of Urban Forestry, Environment and Natural 
Resources, from Apparel Merchandising and Textiles to Fashion Merchandising and 
Design, and from Child Development to Child and Family Studies. (SUAREC)  
These proposed name changes to the college, departments, and programs, reflect the 
new agricultural-related terminology and nomenclature for colleges of agriculture 
and are necessary to more accurately reflect the true nature and complexity of our 
departments, courses of study and concentrations offered at Southern University. 
 

F.  Tenure and Promotion Recommendations for Faculty Who have Gone Through       
     Academic Review and Meet all the Necessary Requirements (SUBR) 
 
Chancellor Pierre gave a summary. The motion was made by Mr. Sam Gilliam and 
seconded by Mrs. Ann Smith to approve Action Item 7F.   
  
Motion Approved. 
 
 



4 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

Name of Faculty Department Present Rank 
Applied for and 

Approved 

1. Lynette Jackson 
Computer Science 
SUBR- Instruction 

Tenure-Track 
Assistant Professor 

Tenure and 
Promotion to 

Associate Professor 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s) 

 
A. Update on Faculty Handbook (SUBR) 

Chancellor Pierre gave an update on the faculty handbook.   
Mr. Gilliam responded and informed Chancellor Pierre that it needs to be done 
expeditiously.  

 
B. Update on Catalog (SUS) 

Chancellor Pierre and Dr. Young are in the process to bring closure to the catalog.   
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 9:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
None 

 
AGENDA ITEM 10:  ADJOURNMENT 

 
A motion was made by Dr, Arlanda Williams to adjourn the meeting.  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
(Following Academic Affairs Committee) 

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA.  
 

AGENDA 
 

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Facilities and Property Committee. 
Chairman Atty Edwin Shorty called the committee meeting to order. 
 
Roll Call by President-Chancellor Shields 
 
Present:   Atty. Edwin Shorty – Chairman, Atty Domoine Rutledge – Vice Chair, Dr. Leon Tarver II, Mr. 
Paul Mathews, Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr. Rani Whitfield, and Mr. Myron K. Lawson, - Ex Officio 
 
Absent: None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Atty Domoine Rutledge and seconded by Dr. Rani Whitfield the agenda was 
recommended for adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(s) 
 
Mr. Kenneth Dawson and Ms. Simone Whitmore gave a presentation and update on all 
campuses.    
There were questions and recommendations from the board members. Mr. Dawson and Ms. 
Whitmore addressed all questions.  
 
The board members thanked both Mr. Dawson and Ms. Whitmore for all their work.   
 

A. Request Approval of Preliminary FY 2024-25 Capital Outlay (eCORTS) Submission    
     Recommendation (SUS) 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6: INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s) 
 

A. Facilities Update (SUS) 
Mr. Dawson informed the members that the items are in the packet.  



6 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7: OTHER BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8: ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Atty Domoine Rutledge to adjourn the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following Facilities and Property Committee) 

Friday, August 18, 2023 
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 

 J S Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

9:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 
Board Chair Myron K. Lawson announced the convening of the Finance Committee. Chairman 
Dr. Arlanda Williams called the committee meeting to order. 
 
Roll Call by President-Chancellor Shields 
 
Present: Dr. Arlanda Williams- Chairman, Mrs. Ann Smith -Vice-Chair, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mrs. 
Christy Reeves Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Dr. Leon Tarver II, and Atty. Mr. Myron K. Lawson - 
Ex Officio 
 
Absent: None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Ms. Ann Smith and seconded by Ms. Christy Reeves the agenda was recommended 
for adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ACTION ITEM(s): 
 
The motion was made by Mr. Sam Gilliam and second by Ms. Ann Smith that Action Item 5A(1-
14) be approved in global.   
 
Motion Approved  
 

 
A. Request Approval of FY 2023-2024 Operating Budgets (SUS) 

 
1. Southern University System Budget Narrative 

2. Southern University System Employee Schedule 

3. Southern University Board and System Administration Operating Budget 



8 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

4. Southern University Board and System Inter-Institutional Cost Transfer Budget  

5. Southern University Board and System Administration Inter-Institutional Transfers 

Direct Charges Budget  

6. Southern University Board and System Special Meals and Miscellaneous Travel 

Budget  

7. Southern University Baton Rouge Campus Operating Budget 

8. Southern University Law Center Operating Budget  

9. Southern University New Orleans Campus Operating Budget  

10. Southern University Shreveport Campus Operating Budget  

11. Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center Operating Budget  

12. SUBR Athletics Intercollegiate Budget 

13. SUNO Athletics Budget 

14. SUSLA Athletics Budget  

AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
  
A motion was made by Mr. Sam Gilliam to adjourn the meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following Finance Committee) 

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA.  
 

AGENDA 
 

Board Chair Myron K. Lawson announced the convening of the Governance Committee. 
Chairman Rev Dr. Samuel Tolbert called the committee meeting to order. 
 
Roll Call by President-Chancellor Shields 
 
Present: Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert – Chairman, Dr. Rani Whitfield – Vice Chairman, Mrs. 
Christy Reeves, Atty Edwin Shorty, Dr. Leon Tarver, II, Mr. Jyron Young and Atty. Mr. Myron 
K. Lawson - Ex Officio 
 
Absent: None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Leon Tarver and seconded by Mrs. Christy Reeves the agenda was 
recommended for adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ACTION ITEM(s): 
 
Atty Corinne Blache gave a summary of the policies.   
 
The motion was made by Dr. Leon Tarver and second by Mrs. Christy Reeves that Action Items 
A and B be approved globally.   
 
Motion Approved  

A. Request Approval of Power-Based Violence/Sexual Misconduct Policy - Policy Number 
6-001 (SUS) 
This policy update will bring the Southern University System into greater uniformity 
with the best practices set out by the Board of Regents as well as bring us into compliance 
with the Student Due Process and Protection Act. 



10 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

B. Title IX Formal Grievance Procedure Policy - Policy Number 6-002 (SUS) 
This policy update will bring the Southern University System into greater uniformity 
with the best practices set out by the Board of Regents as well as bring us into compliance 
with the Student Due Process and Protection Act. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Dr. Rani Whitfield to adjourn the meeting. 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
(Following Governance Committee) 
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA.  

 
MINUTES 

 
Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Personnel Affairs Committee. 
Chair Mr. Sam Gilliam called the committee meeting to order. 
 
Roll Call by President Shields 
 
Present: Mr. Sam Gilliam - Chairman, Mrs. Christy Reeves–Vice-Chair, Ms. Zazell Dudley, Dr. Leon 
Tarver, II., Dr. Arlanda Williams and Mr. Myron Lawson - Ex Officio 
 
Absent: Atty Jody Amedee  
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Leon Tarver and seconded by Ms. Zazell Dudley the agenda was recommended 
for adoption with an amendment to Action Item 5C (8).  This item will be removed for this month. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

1. Dr. Oswald D’Auvergne – Faculty Senate – Thanked the board and Chancellor Pierre 
2. Dr. Albert Samuels Reference to Action Item 5C  
3. Stephanie Britton – On behalf of college of engineering– 
4. Corey Harris – 1987 graduate on behalf of College of Engineering  
5. Corey Taylor  
6. Howard White – Alum on behalf of College of Engineering 
7. Lee Hampton – on behalf of the SU Alumni Society of College of Engineering 
8. Janet Myles  

 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ACTION ITEM(S) 
 
The motion was made by Dr. Arlanda Williams and second by Ms. Zazell Dudley that Action 
Item 5(A-F) be approved globally with Chairman Myron K. Lawson removing himself from the 
voting.   
 
Motion Approved  
 



12 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

A. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than $60,000 
(SUSLA) 

Name Position/Campus Description Waived/Search Salary Funding Source 

1. Devoyne 
Brown 

Director of Outcomes 
Assessment and Quality Mgt 

Salary Increase 
Additional duties related to Planning 

Assessments and Research N/A $72,400.00 Federal 
 

B. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than $60,000 
(SUAREC) 

Name Position/Campus Description Waived/Search Salary Funding Source 

1. Raquel 
Ayles 

Specialist, Youth 
Development (STEAM) 

New Appointment 

Responsible for educational 
programming in Science, 
Technology, Engineering, 

Agriculture & Math in support of 4-H 
youth development Search $80,000.00 State 

 
C. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than $60,000 

(SUBR) 
Name Position/Campus Description Waived/Search Salary Funding Source 

1. Stephone 
Addison 

Assistant Professor  
Criminal Justice 

 Appointment Only Five Year Renewable Appointment N/A $63,111.00 State 

2. Raven 
Dunlap 

Student Counselor 
New Appointment 

Assist students of the Southern 
University Lab School in achieving 

academic and personal goals Search $65,000.00 State 

3. Revathi 
Hines 

Chair/ Professor of Public 
Administration/ Public Policy 

New Appointment 

Responsible for assisting Dean in 
administration of Public Policy 

Department  Waived $124,000.00 State 

4. Laramie 
Immel 

Strength & Conditioning  
Head Coach 

Salary Increase 

Responsible for prescribing specific 
training programs for advanced 
skills, sports performance, and 

athlete records. N/A $65,000.00 State 

5.  Lynette 
Jackson 

Tenure and Promotion to 
Associate Professor 
Computer Science 
 Salary Increase N/A N/A $68,715.00 State 

6. Albertha 
Lawson 

Interim Dean  
Graduate School 

New Appointment 

Responsible for curricular 
development, faculty and budgetary 

affairs for the Graduate School N/A $160,000.00 State 

7. Deadria 
Mackie 

Interim Dean of 
Honors College 

New Appointment 

Responsible for curricular 
development, faculty and budgetary 

affairs for the Honors College N/A $90,000.00 State 

8. Lealon 
Martin 

Dean of College of Science 
and Engineering 

New Appointment 

Responsible for curricular 
development, faculty and budgetary 
affairs for the College of Sciences 

and Engineering  Search $205,000.00 State 

9. Yolander 
Smith 

Interim Online Director 
New Appointment 

Provide collaborative academic 
leadership in developing and 

supporting online teaching and  
learning N/A $117,000.00 Federal/State/Other 



13 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

10. Jalona 
Turner 

Interim Registrar 
New Appointment 

Manage records of student 
information, including academic 

results, financial accounts, and class 
enrollment. N/A $73,800.00 State 

11. Kelwin 
Williams 

Director of Student Conduct 
New Appointment 

Administer, coordinate, and uphold 
the student conduct system through 

the Student Rights and 
Responsibilities Code   

(Student Code) Search $60,000.00 State 

12. Luria 
Young 

Interim VC for  
Academic Affairs 

New Appointment 
Serves as the Chief Academic 

Officer for SUBR N/A $177,000.00 State 

13. William 
Young 

Associate Director of Bands 
New Appointment 

Coordinate band logistics and assist 
students with academic growth and 

development Waived $75,000.00 State 

14. Ashagre 
Yigletu 

Associate Dean  
College of Business 
New Appointment 

Responsible for assisting Dean in 
curricular development, faculty, and 

budgetary affairs for the  
College of Business  Waived $160, 000.00 State 

 

D. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than $60,000 
(SUNO) 

Name Position/Campus Description Waived/Search Salary Funding Source 

1. Patrice 
        Johnson 

Comptroller 
New Appointment 

New hire of a university comptroller 
to improve administration and 

finance controls Search $100,000.00 State 

2. Zackeus 
Johnson  

VC for Enrollment 
Management & Student 

Success 
Title Change Only 

Title change to support new 
initiatives and the reorganization in 

Enrollment Management and 
Student Success N/A $140,000. State 

 
E. Request Approval of Leave Dr. Bijoy Sahoo through December 2023 (SUBR) 

 
F. Request Approval for Faculty Salary Increases 

1. SUNO 
2. SUSLA 
3. SUAREC (all eligible employees) 
4. SUBR 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Dr. Arlanda Williams to adjourn the meeting. 
 
  



14 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
(Following Personnel Affairs Committee) 

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA.  
 

AGENDA 
 

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Chairman 
Myron K. Lawson. 
 
Roll Call by President Shields 
 
PRESENT 
Ms. Zazell Dudley, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Ms. Maple Gaines, Mr. Myron Lawson, Mr. Paul 
Matthews, Ms. Christy Reeves, Atty Domoine Rutledge, Atty Edwin Shorty, Mrs. Ann Smith, 
Dr. Leon Tarver, II, Dr. Samuel Tolbert, Rev. Dr. Rani Whitfield, Dr. Arlanda Williams and Mr. 
Jy’Ron Young 
 
ABSENT 
Atty Jody Amedee 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert and seconded by Mr. Paul Matthews the agenda 
was recommended for adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None  
 
AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(s): 
 
There was a motion by Atty Domoine Rutledge and second by Atty Edwin Shorty to approve 
action item 5A. 
 
Motion passed.  
 

A. Approval of Minutes of the July 21, 2023, SUS Board of Supervisors Meeting 
 
 
 



15 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 
There was a motion by Atty Domoine Rutledge and second by Mr. Paul Matthews to approve 
action item 5B. 
 
Motion passed.  
 

B. Approval of Committee Recommendations. 
 
There was a motion by Atty Domoine Rutledge and second by Dr. Rani Whitfield to approve 
action item 5C. 
 
Motion passed.  
 

C. Request Approval of Corporate Sponsorship Agreement between Athletics and 
OLOL (SUBR) 5-year sponsorship agreement that provides for use of NCAA 
certified trainers or funds to hire NCAA certified trainers 

 
After lengthy discussion between the board members and comments from President Shields, the 
board decided to come back in a couple weeks to discuss this item in detail and vote on it.  
There was a motion by Dr. Leon Tarver and second by Mr. Raymond Fondel to table action item 
5D. 
 
Motion passed.  
 

D. Request Approval of Reorganization (SUS/SUBR) 
Modification of John Pierre’s additional title from Interim Executive Vice 
President to Interim Executive Vice Chancellor of the SUBR Campus; 
Reinstatement of Dr. James Ammons as the Executive Vice President of the 
Southern University System; Recommendation to Deconsolidate the Roles of 
President-Chancellor; and Initiation of a Search for a New Chancellor for SUBR 

 
E. Annual Evaluation of President-Chancellor 

 
There was a motion by Atty Domoine Rutledge and second by Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert to go 
into executive session.  All board members were present except for Atty Jody Amedee. 
 
There was a motion by Mrs. Ann Smith and second by Dr. Rani Whitfield to come out of 
executive session.  All board members were present except for Atty Jody Amedee. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6: RESOLUTIONS 
 
   Dr. Tracey Taylor-Jarrell, Coordinator of Board Relations read resolutions and commendations 
for the following: 
   
 
 



16 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes August 18, 2023 
 
 
  Resolutions 
 

• Judge Tammy Stewart 
• Ms. Gloria Millican 
• Mr. Wilbert Jones 
• Rev. Van Smith 
• Mr. Leroy Vessel 
• Mr. Duane Jordan 
• Mr. Herman Plunkett 
• Mr. Joe Murray Jr. 
• Mr. Kenneth Murray 
• Atty Jason Cantrell 
• Ms. Reversia McClinton Johnson 

 
Commendations 
 

• Mr. Derrick Johnson who was appointed as the president of La Municipal Association 
 
Mr. Raymond Fondel added Shantell Smith  

 
There was a motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield to approve the read resolutions and 
commendations with the additions and Mrs. Christy Reeves second the motion. 

 
Motion approved. 
        
AGENDA ITEM 7: INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s): 
 

A. Presidential Report 
 

B. Chancellor’s Reports 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 9: OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Chairman Lawson thanked everyone for their attendance and wished everyone a great weekend.  
He recognized Miss Laquita Thomas who has calculators donated by Texas Instrument.   
 
AGENDA ITEM 10: ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Motion made by Atty Edwin Shorty to adjourn the meeting.  
  



 Pg.1 

COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 
Between  

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE 
and  

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH AND EXTENSION 
CENTER,  

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS,  
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER, AND  

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT SHREVEPORT LOUISIANA 
 

This COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and 
entered into this 15th day of August, 2023 by and between Southern University and A&M 
College (sometimes referred herein as “SUBR”), and Southern University Agricultural 
Research and Extension (sometimes referred herein as “SUAREC”), Southern University at 
New Orleans (sometimes referred herein as “SUNO”), Southern University Law Center 
(sometimes referred herein as “SULC”), and Southern University at Shreveport Louisiana 
(sometimes referred herein as “SUSLA”), (collectively referred herein as “Parties”) for the public 
purposes herein declared.  
 
WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(C) of the Constitution of the State of Louisiana provides that 
“For a public purpose, the state and its political subdivisions or political corporations may engage 
in cooperative endeavors with each other, with the United States or its agencies, or with any public 
or private association, corporation, or individual”; and  

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto recognize that SUBR was awarded a grant (“Project”) by the 
Louisiana Department of Health (“LDH”) to work on initiatives to improve COVID-19 outcomes 
in communities, reduce health disparities and increase diversity in Louisiana’s healthcare 
workforce; and  

WHEREAS, under the Project SUBR is also tasked with building of capacity and partnerships to 
strengthen the minority health care workforce and address health disparities in Louisiana, and 
educating vulnerable communities to prevent the spread of infectious diseases; and  

WHEREAS, SUAREC, SUNO, SULC, and SUSLA are well situated to assist SUBR throughout 
the State of Louisiana in satisfying the objectives of the Project; and  

WHEREAS, by this Agreement, the Parties wish to establish the terms, conditions and their 
respective rights and obligations as they relate to the Project; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties 
hereto agree as follows: 

 

  



 Pg.2 

ARTICLE 1 
SCOPE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 

1.0  This Project consists of providing initiatives to improve COVID-19 outcomes in 
communities, reduce health disparities, and increase diversity in Louisiana’s healthcare workforce 
by building the capacity and partnerships to strengthen the minority healthcare workforce and 
address health disparities in Louisiana, and educating vulnerable communities to prevent the 
spread of infectious diseases, such as COVID-19.  A copy of the Project is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A.  

RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUBR 

1.2 SUBR shall assign a Project Contact through whom SUAREC, SUNO, SULC, and SUSLA 
will coordinate their respective duties to the Project.  

1.3 SUBR acknowledges and accepts each campus’s proposed Budgets as attached hereto as 
Exhibits B-E and will work with each campus to finalize its full Scope of Work which will be 
incorporated therein. 

1.4  SUBR will pay other Parties out of Project funds for services in accordance with the 
Project regulations and rendered upon successful completion of deliverables associated with the 
Project. A copy of the Project is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUAREC 

1.5 SUAREC agrees to assign a Project Contact and assist SUBR in satisfying the objectives 
of the Project through SUAREC’s Budget attached hereto as Exhibit B. Its full Scope of Work will 
be finalized in consultation with SUBR and incorporated therein.  

1.6  SUAREC agrees to abide by the terms of the Project and assist SUBR in ensuring 
compliance with SUAREC’s portion of work performed under the Project.   

RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUNO 

1.7 SUNO agrees to assign a Project Contact and assist SUBR in satisfying the objectives of 
the Project through SUNO’s Budget attached hereto as Exhibit C. Its full Scope of Work will be 
finalized in consultation with SUBR and incorporated therein. 

1.8  SUNO agrees to abide by the terms of the Project and assist SUBR in ensuring compliance 
with SUNO’s portion of work performed under the Project. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF SULC 

1.9 SULC agrees to assign a Project Contact and assist SUBR in satisfying the objectives of 
the Project through SULC’s Budget attached hereto as Exhibit D. Its full Scope of Work will be 
finalized in consultation with SUBR and incorporated therein.  



 Pg.3 

1.10  SULC agrees to abide by the terms of the Project and assist SUBR in ensuring compliance 
with SULC’s portion of work performed under the Project. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUSLA 

1.11 SUSLA agrees to assign a Project Contact and assist SUBR in satisfying the objectives of 
the Project through SUSLA’s Budget attached hereto as Exhibit E. Its full Scope of Work will be 
finalized in consultation with SUBR and incorporated therein.  

1.12  SUSLA agrees to abide by the terms of the Project and assist SUBR in ensuring compliance 
with SUSLA’s portion of work performed under the Project. 

ARTICLE 2 
AMENDMENTS 

2.0 Matters concerning the request or negotiation of any change in the terms, conditions, or 
amounts cited in Exhibits, and any changes requiring prior approval, should be directed to SUBR’s 
Project Contact.  

2.1  Substantive changes made to any Exhibit and approved Scope of Work require the written 
approval of SUBR and the specific campus.  

ARTICLE 3 
TERM 

This Agreement shall commence on the date first written above and shall remain in effect 
until all obligations and payments contained herein have been met.   

ARTICLE 4 
TERMINATION 

Any substantive violation of the Project Agreement or failure to comply with statutory 
obligations shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement as it relates to the breaching Party.  

ARTICLE 5 
COUNTERPARTS 

 
This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed to be an original copy of this Agreement, but all of which, when taken together, shall 
constitute one and the same agreement.  

ARTICLE 6 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT / MODIFICATIONS 

This Agreement, including any attachments that are expressly referred to herein, contains 
the entire Agreement between the Parties and supersedes any and all Agreements or Contracts 



 Pg.4 

previously entered into between the Parties. No representations are made or relied upon by any 
Party other than those that are expressly set forth within. Any modification or amendment to this 
Agreement shall be valid only when it has been reduced to writing and executed by SUBR and the 
specific campus.  

ARTICLE 7 
CONTROLLING LAW 

The validity, interpretation, and performance of this Agreement shall be controlled by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana. The Parties submit themselves to 
the exclusive jurisdiction of the Nineteenth Judicial District Court in and for the Parish of East 
Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana, for resolution of any disputes arising under this Agreement.  

ARTICLE 8 
LEGAL COMPLIANCE 

SUBR, SUAREC, SUNO, SULC, and SUSLA shall comply with all federal, state, and 
local laws and regulations, including, specifically, but without limitation, the Louisiana Code of 
Governmental Ethics (R.S42:1101, et seq.), in carrying out the provisions of the Agreement.  

ARTICLE 9 
PUBLIC LIABILITY / INDEMNIFICATION 

 
9.1 The Parties shall indemnify and save harmless the other, as well as their officers, agents, 
employees, contractors and assigns against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, demands, suits, 
causes of action, damages, and judgments of any sum of money to any party, as well as their 
officers, agents, employees, servants, contractors or assigns, growing out of, resulting from, or by 
reason of any act or omission of itself or any of its officers, agents, employees, servants, contractors 
or assigns while engaged in, upon or about, or in connection with the discharge or performance of 
the terms of this Agreement. 
 
9.2 No Party to this Agreement shall be liable for any delay or failure in performance beyond 
its control resulting from acts of God or force majeure.  The Parties shall use reasonable efforts to 
eliminate or minimize the effect of such events upon performance of their respective duties under 
the Agreement.  

 
9.3 Nothing herein is intended, nor shall be deemed to create a third party beneficiary to or for 
any obligation by any Party hereto or to authorize any third party person to have any action against 
any Party hereto arising out of this Agreement. 

 
9.4 It is specifically understood and agreed that nothing herein shall be construed to create a 
joint venture, partnership, agency, or similar relationship. The Parties shall not have the power to 
act for or bind one another or any. 
 
9.5 The Parties shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations in the 
performance of their responsibilities under this Agreement. 



 Pg.5 

ARTICLE 10 
SEVERABILITY 

If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstances shall, at any time or to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the 
remainder of this Agreement, or the Application of such term, covenant, condition or provision to 
persons or circumstance other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not 
be affected thereby, and each term, covenant, condition, and provision of this Agreement shall be 
valid and be enforced to the fullest extent of the law.  

ARTICLE 11 
CAPTIONS 

The captions and headings of the several articles and section of this Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall not control, affect the meaning of or be taken as an interpretation of 
any provisions of this Agreement. 

THE PARTIES hereto, have executed this Agreement on the day, month, and year first 
above written.  

 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 
AND A&M COLLEGE 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Dennis J. Shields 
 President-Chancellor 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 
AGRICULTURE RESEARCH AND 
EXTENSION CENTER 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Dr. Orlando McMeans 
 Chancellor 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW 
ORLEANS 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Dr. James H. Ammons 
 Chancellor 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW 
CENTER 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 John K. Pierre 
 Chancellor 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 
SHREVEPORT LOUISIANA 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Dr. Aubra Gantt 
 Chancellor 
 

 

 



 Pg.6 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

Contract between State of Louisiana 
Louisiana Department of Health 

Office of Public Health 
Bureau of Community Preparedness 

 
And 

 
Southern University and A&M College 

 
La Gov. No. 2000728641 
Agency No. 326 
 
Contract and all amendments   



 Pg.7 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Recommendation for SUAREC LDH CEA Funds Distribution 
 

Description Cost 
1) Develop Educational Modules and 

materials related to COVID-19 and 
other adult immunizations to enhance 
the community’s awareness and 
understanding of COVID-19. 

 
 
 
$   30,000.00 

2) Jags 4 Vax billboards posted throughout 
the State of Louisiana. 

 
$  400,000.00 

3) Host Health Fairs in rural underserved 
communities throughout the State to 
educate individuals on important health 
topics like COVID-19/immunization 
education and disease prevention. 

 
 
 
$  150,000.00 

4) Mobile fresh food markets that will 
travel to SU System campuses. 

 
$  100,000.00 

5) Implement demonstration gardens. $  105,000.00 
6) Provide academic and financial supports 

to students in the food and nutrition 
programs to prepare them to be 
community resources to individuals who 
need education about consuming healthy 
foods to build healthy immune systems. 

 
 
 
 
$    50,000.00 

7) Hire two full-time community outreach 
workers to support planning and 
execution of events (salary& fringes) 

 
 
$  124,200.00 

8) Provide stipends to 10 student 
ambassadors. 

$    35,000.00 

9) Travel, printing, and marketing $    38,000.00 
10) Community festivals, wellness services 

and other related activities  
$  272,500.00 

 
TOTAL 

 
$ 1,304,700.00 

 
  



 Pg.8 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Recommendation for SUNO LDH CEA Funds Distribution 
 

Description Cost 
1) HIMS conference participation. $  10,750.00 
2) Faculty Supplemental Pay. $  42,000.00 
3) Student stipends to 45 students for 

patient testing training, field data 
collection, analysis, and dissemination. 

 
 
$ 450,000.00 

4) Community festivals, wellness services 
and other related activities 

$272,500.00 

 
Equipment and Supplies 

 
Cost 

 
1)  Confocal Microscope for Confirmatory 

Experiments. 

 
$  300,000.00 

 
2)   Science Table, Experimental Evaluators, 

and Virtual Human Cadavers Dissection 
Equipment. 

 
 
$   160,000.00 

3) POR Machine. $     45,000.00 
4) Desktop computers for students/faculty. $     25,000.00 
5) Laptop computers for students/faculty. $     18,000.00 
6) Software for HIMS updates. $       6,500.00 
7) Health Information Association Student 

Certification Exam Fees. 
 
$       2,000.00 

 
TOTAL 

 
$ 1,369,749.00 

 
  



 Pg.9 

EXHIBIT D 
 

Recommendation for SULC LDH CEA Funds Distribution 
 

Description Cost 
1) Host community educational fairs to raise 

awareness of the impact current policies, 
social/political determinants of health and 
health literacy have on vulnerable 
communities. 

 
 
  22,000.00 

2) Host STEM and health care career impact 
days at K-12 schools located in vulnerable 
communities. 

 
  32,000.00 

3) Provide paid field placement opportunities 
for health law students that focus on health 
equity (6 students X $6,000). 

 
  36,000.00 

4) Provide paid research opportunities for 
law students to draft proposed legislation 
that will formulate public policies on 
healthcare affecting vulnerable 
communities (6 students x $6,000). 

 
 
 
   36,000.00 

5) Provide additional conversation for SULC 
(faculty members to teach health law 
courses on the social/political 
determinants of health, health law policy, 
and supervise research of law students and 
field placements of law students in health 
equity organizations ($60,000 plus 
$24,000 fringe benefits). 

 
 
 
 
 
  84,000.00 

6) Provide funding support for health law 
students to attend health equity trainings, 
symposium, and conventions. 

 
  16,000.00 

7) Conduct continuing legal education, 
continuing education, and continuing 
professional development seminars on 
health equity, health justice, public health 
policies, and health legislation 
professionals. 

 
 
 
  30,000.00 

8) Provide compensation for a Project 
Manager for SULC LDH CEA activities 
(contracted position). 

 
  72,000.00 

9) Find a Demonstration Project in 
Morehouse Parish to treat hypertension 
using advanced digital technology for 

 
 
 



 Pg.10 

remote care and treatment of hypertension. 
Morehouse Parish in the Louisiana Delta 
is one of the worst rural areas in the nation 
for cardiovascular disease. The current 
state of AI allows for the application of 
advanced algorithms combined with FDA 
approved remote Wi-Fi/Cellular Blood 
Pressure to apply the state-of-the-art 
guidelines for the management of 
Hypertension, a significant factor in 
COVID-19 negative outcomes. With the 
AI backbone, a digital ecosystem will be 
created that will allow for better 
management of hypertension which can be 
replicated statewide. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 500,000.00 

10) Community wellness services and other 
related activities 

  209,999 

 
 
TOTAL 

 
 
  1,027,999.00 

 
  



 Pg.11 

EXHIBIT E 
 

Recommendation for SUSLA LDH CEA Funds Distribution 
 

Dental Hygiene Amount Total 
1. Dental Carts $      389.00 X 9 $    3,501.00 
2. Desk Top Computers $   1,199.00 X 13 $  15,587.00 
3. Pole Mounts $      225.00 X 9 $    2,025.00 
4. Intra Oral Camera $   3,500.00 X 1 $    3,500.00 
5. Statim Sterilizer $    5,665.00 X 1 $    5,665.00 
6. Large Portable Storage 

Unit 
$   6,924.00 X 1 $    6,924.00 

7. Instructor $ 14,000.00 X 1 $  14,000.00 
8. Supervising Dentist $ 20,000.00 X 1 $  20,000.00 
9. Dental Accreditation Fee $    2,500.00 X 1 $    2,500.00 
10. Faculty Education 

Methodology 
$    5,000.00 X 1 $    5,000.00 

11. Students National Board 
Exam Fee 

 
$       550.00 X 12 

 
$    6,600.00 

12. Regional Board Fees $     1,195.00 X 12 $   14,340.00 
13. Louisiana Jurisprudence 

Exam Fees 
 
$        400.00 X 12 

 
$     4,800.00 

14. Background Check Fees $          50.00 X 12 $        600.00 
15. Malpractice Insurance 

Fee 
$          50.00 X 12 $        600.00 

16. Nation Board Instrument 
Kit 

$          55.00 X 12 $        660.00 

17. Professional Dental Pins $          85.00 X 12 $      1,020.00 
18. Pinning Awards & 

White Coats 
$     2,500.00 X 1 $      2,500.00 

 
TOTAL 

  
$  109,831.00 

 
EMS 

 
AMOUNT 

 
TOTAL 

1. Sim X Software 
Licenses 

$   3,000.00 X 4 $  12,000.00 

2. Sim X EMS 
Curriculum 

$   4,000.00 X 1 $   4,000.00 

3. Sim X One-Time 
Fees 

$    2,500,00 $    2,500.00 

 
TOTAL 

  
$   18,500 



 Pg.12 

 
EXHIBIT E CONTINUED 

 
Health Information Technology/Medical Coding Specialist 

Program 
1.  New Laptops for 

Clinical Students & 
Faculty 

 
$    1,200.00 X 13 

 
$  15,600.00 

2. HIT State Professional 
Annual Convention 

 
$        50.00 X 10 

 
$       500.00 

3. RHIT Exam Prep 
Workshop 

$    1,000.00 X 3 $     3,000.00 

4. Faculty travel for 
LHIMA Convention 

 
$    4,000.00 

 
$     4,000.00 

5. EHR Go Software 
License Fee 

$    1,900.00 $     1,900.00 

6. AHIMA Annual 
Student Membership 
Fee 

 
$       500,00 

 
$        500.00 

7. Criminal Background 
and Drug Screen Fees 

 
$       250.00 

 
$         250.00 

8. Pinning Ceremony $       750.00 $         750.00 
 
TOTAL  

  
 $     27,500.00 

 
Description Cost 

 
Medical Lab Technician & Phlebotomy 
Refurbish Lab with state-of-the-art equipment. 

 

 
$300,000.00 

Nursing Cost 
1. Computer Lab $   20,000.00 
2. Assessment Technologies Institute 

Resources 
$ 100,000.00 

3. Hurst Review Services $   20,000.00 
4. IRIS Reade $   10,000.00 
5. Program Marketing $     5,000.00 
6. Faculty Professional Development $     5,000.00 

 
TOTAL 

 
$  160,000.00 

 



 Pg.13 

 
EXHIBIT E CONTINUED 

 
Polysomnography (Sleep) Technology Program 

Description Cost 
1.  PSGT Program Clinical Coordinator $     54,000.00 
2. Adjunct Instructor Pay Increases $     27,000.00 
3. SUSLA Sleep Lab Accreditation $       7,500.00 
4. SUSLA Sleep Scholarships $     30,000.00 
5. Tray-e sys Clinical Management System $          400.00 
6. ISR Annual Subscription $       1,200.00 

TOTAL $ 120,100.00 
 

Radiologic Technology 
Description Cost 

1. PBU 90 Rugged Disarticulation Phantom $  34,300.00 
2. BMI Fat Plate $    3,800.00 
3. Digital Portable $   50,000.00 
4. Software Upgrades for Digital Energized 

Lab 
$   50,000.00 

5. Blood Pressure Simulator and Vital Signs 
Simulator 

$     5,000.00 

6. Lab Clinical Practice Tables $     4,000.00 
 
TOTAL 

 
$ 147,100.00 

 
Respiratory Therapy 

Description Cost 
1. Adjunct Instructor Pay Increases $  27,000.00 
2. Clinical Preceptor Incentive Stipends $  10,500.00 
3. COARC Accreditation $    3,500.00 
4. RT Exam Review Course $  15,500.00 
5. SUSLA Scholarships $  30,000.00 
6. Trajeosys Clinical Management System $     2,600.00 
7. RT Lab EquPoment $  10,000.00 
8. Virtual Lab Room 99 $   30,000.00 
9. Facility Training $   10,000.00 

TOTAL $ 139,100.00 
 
 



 Pg.14 

 
 

EXHIBIT E CONTINUED 
 

Surgical Technology 
 

DESCRIPTION 
 

COST 
1.  Adjunct Clinical Instructor $   20,000.00 
2. Pre-Clinical Online Courses $     5,500.00 
3. Dialysis Machine & De-Ionizer Machine 

Maintenance 
$     5,000.00 

4. Dialysis Part-time Faculty Cost $    24,000.00 
5. Surgical Boom $    90,000.00 
6. Niron Microscopes $    15,000.00 
7. Mobile Microscope Storage Cabinet $      1,500.00 

TOTAL $  161,000.00 
 

Community Services 
 

DESCRIPTION 
 

COST 
1. Community festivals, wellness services and 

other related activities 
$   197,500 

TOTAL $  197,500.00 
 

SUSLA’S SUBTOTALS 
DESCRIPTION COST 

1.  Dental Hygiene $  109,831.00 
2. EMS $    18,500.00 
3. Health Information Technology/Medical 

Coding 
$    27,500.00 

4. Medical Lab Technician and Phlebotomy $   300,000.00 
5. Nursing $   160,000.00 
6. Polysomnographic (Sleep) Technology 

Program 
$   120,100.00 

7. Radiologic Technology $   147,100.00 
8. Respiratory Therapy $   139,100.00 
9. Surgical Technology $  161,000.00 
10. Community Services $  197,500.00 

TOTAL $   1,080,631.00 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Five Campuses, One Vision... Global Excellence 

WWW.SUS.EDU 

 
J.S. Clark Administration Building   

4th Floor  
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

 

 

Office of The  
  President-Chancellor 

(225) 771-4680 
 

Fax Number 
(225) 771-5522 

 

       Southern University and A&M College System 
 

September 13, 2023 
 

Board of Supervisors 
Southern University & A&M College System 
P.O. Box 10878 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 

Re: Request for Approval of Reorganization  

 
Dear Honorable Board Members:  
 
During this last year we have taken strides in a renewed focus on student outcomes and diversifying 
revenue streams within the Southern University System.  Recently I’ve been developing a pathway for 
pragmatic assistance at Southern University and A&M College.  Previous observations coupled with 
progress over this month has provided me additional insight that I’d like to share with you, and which 
forms the basis of the following request.  
 
In July, Chancellor John K. Pierre was approved by the Board to be the Interim Executive Vice 
President.  However, the Board never approved compensation for the additional duties.  Therefore, I 
am asking that the Board approve additional compensation of $9,000/month for six (6) months 
commencing August 1, 2023; deconsolidation of the president-chancellor role; and the commencement 
a search for a permanent chancellor for SUBR.  Upon the selection of a new chancellor, I will execute 
a new contract, relinquishing my title only.  Doing so will allow me to dedicate my full time and 
attention to the needs of the System. 
 
I do not make this request lightly.  As I’ve stated previously, my firm commitment is to the students 
that we serve.  I believe approving these requests will assuage any confusion as to everyone’s role and 
allow us to continue the work deserving of our students, employees, and community.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Dennis J. Shields 
President-Chancellor 
 
 

http://www.sus.edu/


SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
PRESIDENT-CHANCELLOR

DENNIS SHIELDS

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER
 INTERIM EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

  JOHN K. PIERRE

Interim Vice Chancellor
Administration

Desiree Honore-Thomas 

Vice Chancellor
Student Affairs
Fredrick Walton

Interim Vice Chancellor 
Enrollment 

Management 
Anthony Jackson

Southern University Law Center 
Organizational Chart

August 30, 2023



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
PRESIDENT-CHANCELLOR

DENNIS SHIELDS

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER
 INTERIM EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

  JOHN K. PIERRE

Assist. Vice Chancellor
Student Success

Avis Chaney

Interim Dean
Graduate School
Albertha Lawson

Interim Dean
Honors College
Deadra Mackie

Interim Vice Chancellor
Academic Affairs

Lauria Young

John B. Cade Library
Dawn Kight

Senior Assoc. Vice Chancellor
Faculty

Patrick Mensah
School of Nursing

Sandra Brown

College of Humanities
Interdisciplinary Studies

Cynthia Bryant

Nelson Mandela
College of Government 

and Social Sciences
Damien Ejigiri

Southern University Law Center 
Organizational Chart

August 30, 2023

University College
Javon Thomas

College of Business
Donald Andrews

College of Sciences and 
Engineering

Patrick Carriere

International Education
Barbara Capenter

Deans


	Seprember 2023 BOS Meeting Packet
	MOU between SUS and ST Kitts
	College of Humanities and Interdisciplinary Studies Curriculum Change
	Endowed Professorships SUBR
	Endowed Professorships SULC
	Academic Rank for Librarians
	Preliminary FY 2024-25 Capital Outlay (eCORTS)
	Facilities Update
	ADA Policy
	Risk Management Policy
	SUNO Personnel
	SUBR Personnel
	Other Personnell Actions
	Pay Increases
	August Minutes
	CEA between SUS Campuses
	Request for Approval of Reorganization
	SUS Organizational Chart



